
CITY OF ALBION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Meetings:  First and Third Mondays – 7:00 p.m. 

 
City Council Chambers ♦ Second Floor ♦ 112 West Cass Street ♦ Albion, MI  49224 

 

 

COUNCIL-MANAGER 

GOVERNMENT 

 
Council members and 

other officials normally in 

attendance. 

 
 

Garrett Brown 

Mayor 

 

Maurice Barnes, Jr. 

Council Member 

1st Precinct 

 
Lenn Reid 

Council Member 

2nd Precinct 

 
Sonya Brown 

Mayor Pro-Tem 

Council Member 

3rd Precinct 

 

Marcola Lawler 
Council Member 
4th Precinct 

 

Jeanette Spicer 

Council Member  

5th Precinct   

 

Andrew French 

Council Member 

6th Precinct 

 

Scott Kipp 

Interim City Manager

  

 

 The Harkness Law Firm 

Atty Cullen Harkness  

 

Jill Domingo 

City Clerk 
 

 
NOTICE FOR PERSONS WITH 

HEARING IMPAIR-MENTS 

WHO REQUIRE THE USE OF A 

PORTABLE LISTENING DEVICE   

 

Please contact the City 

Clerk’s office at 

517.629.5535 and a listening 

device will be provided 

upon notification.  If you 

require a signer, please 

notify City Hall at least five 

(5) days prior to the posted 

meeting time. 

   
 

 

AGENDA  
 

COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, April 16, 2018 
. 

7:00 P.M. 
 

PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES DURING MEETING 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED 

 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV. ROLL CALL 
 

V. MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER’S COMMENTS 
 
 VI. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 
VII. PRESENTATIONS 

 

  A. AEDC Update-Amy Deprez, President & CEO, AEDC 
  B. Certificate of Recognition Robert (Bob) Holt 100-Year-Old Birthday 

   
 VIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS-Amendment to Medical Marihuana Ordinance 
 

 A. Request Approval 1st Reading Ordinance # 2018-04, An Ordinance           
      to Amend Chapter 30 Of The 1984 Zoning Code of The City of     

      Albion, By Amending the Section 30-04 Definitions, Division 8 B-3           
      Highway Service District, Division 9 Section 30-269 M-1-P Light     
      Industrial Parks, Division 10 Section M-2 Heavy Industrial District and 

      Section 30-285 Heavy Industrial Parks M-2 (P) (RCV) 

   

IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 

comments to agenda items only and to no more than three (3) minutes. Proper 

decorum is required.) 

 
X. CONSENT CALENDAR (VV) (Items on Consent Calendar are voted on  

            as one unit) 
A. Approval Regular Session Minutes, March 19, 2018 
B.  Approve Regular Session Minutes, April 2, 2018 

C. Approve Study Session Minutes, April 9, 2018 



CITY OF ALBION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Meetings:  First and Third Mondays – 7:00 p.m. 

 
City Council Chambers ♦ Second Floor ♦ 112 West Cass Street ♦ Albion, MI  49224 

 

 

D. Approve Assembly Permit for The Big Read Program at Holland  
         Park on September 29, 2018 from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 

  E. Approve Lions Club Sale of White Canes from April 27, 2018 to 
  May 5, 2018 

F.  Approve National Day of Prayer on Thursday, May 3, 2018 at  

    Noon on the Steps of City Hall 
G. Approve Use of Stoffer Plaza for Red, White & Blue Cruise-In to 

      be held on Friday, June 29, 2018 from 4-9 p.m. 
      

XI.  ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 

    
             A.  Request Resolution # 2018-12, A Resolution for the Michigan 

Community Development Block (CDBG) Funding for the Peabody 

Block Project (RCV) 
 

B.  Discussion-Update on Union Steel Building 
 

C.  Discussion-Update on Asbestos Inspection of 608 Austin Avenue 

  
D.  Discussion/Approval to Set Date for Council Rules & Procedures 

      Study Session with Attorney Scott Smith       
                                               

E.   Request Approval for Purchase of 114 W. Cass St. from Calhoun 

     County Land Bank for $1.00 and $370.00 for Title Insurance (RCV) 
 

F.   Request Approval 1st Reading Ordinance # 2018-05, Amendment 
to Allow Dispensaries (RCV) 

 

G.  Discussion-Council Goals 
 

H.   Discussion-Identify Top 3 Objectives for Project Rising Tide Project  

 
I.     Request Approval for Sale of Property for 702, 704, 706 & 708 W. 

Erie St. (RCV) 
          

J. Discussion-2018 Recreation Millage 

 
XII. Future Agenda Items 

 
XIII. Motion to Excuse Absent Council Member(s) 

 

XIV. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit    
         their comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum  

         is required.) 
 

XV. ADJOURN 



The following information is available for your use and to present at the council meeting.  MDOT will 

distribute a news bulletin for release via the MDOT@govsubscriptions web service 

(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/MIDOT/subscriber/new) on May 2nd.  

  

The attached schedule and construction operations is the updated schedule for the 2018 brick 

pavement on M-99 (Superior St.) The detour overview is also attached.  This schedule is working 6 days 

per week, weather pending and excluding Memorial Day and Independence Day Holiday periods. 

  

We are starting on Stage 3 (temporary asphalt section) the quantity of bricks for this section are on 

hand. This is anticipated as May 7th thru June 3rd. 

  

Stages 1 and 2 (2017 bricks) is anticipated from June 4th to Sept 2nd. This bricks are being manufactured 

for this section 

  

May 7th thru June 3rd        

         M-99 (Superior St) Northbound and Southbound – Detour to thru traffic from Irwin Ave to 

Austin Ave  

o    Posted Detour – Irwin Ave Westbound to Eaton St Northbound to I-94 Eastbound 

to Exit 124 (M-99) 

         M-99 (Superior St) Northbound and Southbound – Local traffic detoured from Cass St to 

Mulberry St  

o    No detour posted 

         I-94BL (Michigan Ave) Eastbound and Westbound – Detour to all traffic from Ionia St to 

Clinton St  

o    Posted detour I-94BL (Michigan Ave) Eastbound to I-94 Westbound to Exit 121 (C 

Drive N) Eastbound to Eaton St Southbound to I-94BL 

         ‘ALL BUSINESSES OPEN’ sign with directional arrows posted at Erie St, Porter St, Center St, 

Cass St, Michigan Ave and Superior St 

         ‘PARKING’ signs with direction arrows will be placed at the Cass St / Eaton St and Erie St / 

Eaton St Intersections 

  

June 4th thru Sept 2nd 

         M-99 (Superior St) Northbound and Southbound – Detour to thru traffic from Irwin Ave to 

Austin Ave  

o    Posted Detour – Irwin Ave Westbound to Eaton St Northbound to Austin Ave 

Eastbound to Superior St Southbound to M-99 (Michigan Ave) Eastbound 

         ‘ALL BUSINESSES OPEN’ sign with directional arrows posted at Erie St, Porter St, Center St, 

Cass St, and Superior St 

         ‘PARKING’ signs with direction arrows will be placed at the Cass St / Eaton St and Erie St / 

Eaton St Intersections 

         Erie St and Cass St will not be closed at the same time – one day exception Ultra This HMA 

(during asphalt paving) Week of June 18th  

         One block sections will be open to local traffic upon completion of new brick roadway one 

block beyond the intersection. Example : working south – Cass St will open when brick is 

completed thru Center St. Center St will open when brick is completed thru Porter St. 

  

 



www.michigan.gov/mdot

S 
Su

pe
rio

r S
t

N
 E
at
on

 S
t

S 
Ea

to
n 
St

N
 C
la
rk
 S
t

E Michigan Ave

W Erie St E Erie St

E North St

S 
H
an

na
h 
St

Project Area

M‐99 (S Superior St) Detour

I‐94BL (E Michigan Ave) Detour



116324A ‐ M‐99 Albion 
2018 Brick Construction

30‐Apr 7‐May 14‐May 21‐May 28‐May 4‐Jun 11‐Jun 18‐Jun 25‐Jun 2‐Jul 9‐Jul 16‐Jul 23‐Jul 30‐Jul 6‐Aug 13‐Aug 20‐Aug 27‐Aug 3‐Sep 10‐Sep 17‐Sep 24‐Sep

STAGE 3 ‐ Amtrak To Vine Street
‐ 2,837 syds
Set‐up Detour
Remove Asphalt Pavement
Remove Cure Compound
Clean Concrete Base Course
Ultra Thin HMA
Install Brick
Pavement Markings
Open To Traffic

STAGE 1 and 2 ‐ Ash Street to Amtrak
‐ 8,908 syds
Set‐up Detour
Remove Brick Pavement
Remove Cure Compound
Clean Concrete Base Course
Ultra Thin HMA
Install Brick
Pavement Markings
Open To Traffic

Co
lle
ge

 G
ra
du

at
io
n 
M
ay

 5
th

M
em

or
ia
l D

ay
 ‐ 
M
ay

 2
8t
h

Fo
ut
h 
of
 Ju

ly

La
bo

r D
ay

 ‐ 
Se
pt
em

be
r 3

rd

MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER

finnilag
Typewritten Text
Closed Cass to Mulberry

finnilag
Typewritten Text
Closed Ash to Michigan

finnilag
Line

finnilag
Line

finnilag
Line

finnilag
Line



Notice of Public Hearing Before 

The Albion City Council 

Monday, April 16, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall – Council Chambers – Second Floor 

William L. Reiger Municipal Building 

112 West Cass Street, Albion, Michigan 

 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Albion City Council will meet as noticed above to consider the 

following amendments to the Code of Ordinance, City of Albion: 

CHAPTER 30 OF THE CITY OF ALBION ZONING ORDINANCE 

Chapter 30, Section 30-04. Definitions.  

Medical Marihuana Facilities: State Licensed Medical Marihuana Grower Facility, Safety  

 Compliance Facility, Processor Facility and Secure Transporter with an approved  

 Medical Marihuana Facilities license pursuant to Chapter 22, Article V of the City Code  

 of Ordinance.  

a) Grower Facility: A commercial entity that cultivated, dries, trims or cures and packages 

Marihuana for sale to a Processor or Provisioning Center.  

  

b) Processor Facility: A commercial entity that purchases Marihuana from a Grower and that 

extracts resin from the Marihuana or creates a Marihuana-infused product for sale and 

transfer in packaged form to a Provisioning Center.  

 

c) Safety Compliance Facility: A commercial entity that receives Marihuana from a Medical 

Marihuana Facility or registered primary caregiver, tests it for contaminants and for 

tetrahydrocannabinol and other cannabinoids, returns the test results, and may return the 

Marihuana to the Medical Marihuana Facility.  

 

d) Secure Transporter: A commercial entity that store Marihuana and transports Marihuana 

between Medical Marihuana Facilities for a fee.  

 

Chapter 30, Division 8, B-3 Highway service district, Section 30-243. Permitted uses. 

 

l. State Licensed Medical Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility and Secure Transporter with an 

      approved Medical Marihuana Facilities license pursuant to Chapter 22, Article V of the City Code of  

      Ordinance.  

1. No Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter shall be 

located within five hundred (500) feet of real property comprising a public or 

private elementary, licensed child care facility, vocational or secondary school.    

 

2. No Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter shall be 

located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of real property comprising of a 

public park. Any Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure 

Transporter located more than two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five 

hundred (500) feet or real property comprising a public park shall have perimeter 

surrounded by an eight (8) foot fence. Fence shall not consist of over 40% 

opaque fence material. Fence material utilized shall be in the form of traditional 



fencing sold for retail purposed, including metal, vinyl or wood.   

 

3. No Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter shall be 

located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of real property comprising a place of 

religious worship. Any Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure 

Transporter located more than two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five 

hundred (500) feet of real property comprising a place of religious worship shall 

have perimeter surrounded by an eight (8) foot fence. Fence shall not consist of 

over 40% opaque fence material. Fence material utilized shall be in the form of 

traditional fencing sold for retail purposes, including metal, vinyl or wood.   

 

Chapter 30, Division 9, Section 30-269. Light industrial parks (M-1-P). 

 

Sec. 30-269.1 Permitted Use. State Licensed Medical Marihuana Grower Facility, Safety Compliance 

Facility, Processor Facility and Secure Transporter with an approved Medical Marihuana Facilities 

license pursuant to Chapter 22, Article V of the City Code of Ordinance.  

1. No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter  

shall be located within five hundred (500) feet of real property comprising a public or private 

elementary, licensed child care facility, vocational or secondary school.  

2. No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter 

shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of real property comprising of a public 

park. Any Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure 

Transporter located more than two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five hundred (500) 

feet or real property comprising a public park shall have perimeter surrounded by an eight (8) 

foot fence. Fence shall not consist of over 40% opaque fence material. Fence material utilized 

shall be in the form of traditional fencing sold for retail purposes, including metal, vinyl or 

wood. 

3. No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter 

shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of real property comprising a place of 

religious worship. Any Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or 

Secure Transporter located more than two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five hundred 

(500) feet of real property comprising a place of religious worship shall have perimeter 

surrounded by an eight (8) foot fence. Fence shall not consist of over 40% opaque fence 

material. Fence material utilized shall be in the form of traditional fencing sold for retail 

purposes, including metal, vinyl or wood. 

 

Renumber Sec. 30-269 to Sec. 30-269.2  

 

Chapter 30, Division 10, M-2 Heavy industrial District, Section 30-283 Permitted uses.  

Change existing letting ff. to gg.  

ff. State Licensed Medical Marihuana Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility 

and Secure Transporter with an approved Medical Marihuana Facilities license pursuant to Chapter 22, 

Article V of the City Code of Ordinance.  

1. No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure 

Transporter shall be located within five hundred (500) feet of real property 

comprising a public or private elementary, licensed child care facility, vocational 

or secondary school. 



 

2. No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure 

Transporter shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of real property 

comprising a public park. Any Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, 

Processor Facility or Secure Transporter located more than two hundred fifty 

(250) feet but less than five hundred (500) feet or real property comprising a 

public park shall have perimeter surrounded by an eight (8) foot fence. Fence 

shall not consist of over 40% opaque fence material. Fence material utilized 

shall be in the form of traditional fencing sold for retail purposes, including 

metal, vinyl or wood. 

 

3. No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure 

Transporter shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of real property 

comprising a place of religious worship. Any Grower Facility, Safety 

Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter located more than 

two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five hundred (500) feet of real property 

comprising a place of religious worship shall have perimeter surrounded by an 

eight (8) foot fence. Fence shall not consist of over 40% opaque fence material. 

Fence material utilized shall be in the form of traditional fencing sold for retail 

purposes, including metal, vinyl or wood.  

 

4. Lot area, setback and structure height:  

i. No minimum lot area required. 

ii. Front yard setback shall be no less than thirty (30) feet. 

iii. Side yard setback shall be no less than twenty (20) feet. 

iv. Rear yard setback shall be no less than thirty (30) feet.  

v. Structure height shall not exceed three (3) stories or fifty (50) feet. 

 

Section 30-285. Heavy industrial parks—M-2 (P). 

Heavy industrial parks shall permit all uses allowed in light industrial districts, light industrial parks and 

heavy industrial districts, and shall conform to all the requirements of Section 30-269.2 of this Code.  

 

All concerned citizens are encouraged to be present at this meeting to express their opinions on this 

matter, as public input is an important element in the Commission deliberations. Furthermore, a 

Commission decision on this matter is likely at the meeting.  

To comply with the Americans Disabilities Act (ADA), any citizen requesting accommodations to attend 

this meeting/function, and/or obtain this notice in alternate format, please contact the Planning 

Department at (517) 629-7189 at least five business days prior to the meeting/function.  

Copies of the proposed amendments are available in City Hall Monday through Friday from 8 a.m. – 5 

p.m. Written comments or suggestions regarding this matter are also welcome and should be provided to 

the Planning Department by no later than 5:00 p.m. on Monday, April 16, 2018.  

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

John Tracy 

Director of Planning, Building, Code Enforcement  



CITY OF ALBION 

ORDIANCE #2018-04 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 30 OF THE 1984 ZONING CODE OF THE CITY OF 

ALBION, BY AMENDING THE SECTION 30-04 DEFINITIONS, DIVISION 8 B-3 HIGHWAY 

SERVICE DISTRICT, DIVISION 9 SECTION 30-269 M-1-P LIGHT INDUSTRIAL PARKS, 

DIVISION 10 SECTION M-2 HEAVY INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT AND SECTION 30-285 HEAVY 

INDUSTRIAL PARKS M-2 (P). 

 

Findings and Purpose:  

 The Mayor and Council of the City of Albion, based upon recommendation by the Planning 

Commission, find that there is a need to amend the Commercial Zoned Highway Service District B-3, 

Industrial Zoned District  M-2, M-2-P and M-1 (P) to better address the proposed location of State 

Licensed Medical Marihuana Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility and Secure 

Transporter with an approved State Licensed Medical Marihuana Facilities,  pursuant to Chapter 22, 

Article V of the City of Albion Code of Ordinance.    

It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made part 

of the City Code of Ordinances and the Zoning Code of Ordinances, City of Albion, Michigan, and the 

Sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such intention.  

 

Section 1 – Title. An Ordinance to amend Chapter 30 of the 1984 Zoning Code of the City of Albion by 

amending Section 30-04 Definitions, amend Highway Service District B-3, Industrial District M-2, M-2-P 

and M-1 (P) to address State Licensed Medical Marihuana Facilities, pursuant to Chapter 22, Article V 

of the City of Albion Code of Ordinance.  

Section 2. Amendment. 

That section 30-40. Definitions. Of the Code of the City of Albion (1984) Chapter 30 Zoning is hereby 

amended to add new definition to read as follows: 

Medical Marihuana Facilities: State Licensed Medical Marihuana Grower Facility, Safety  

 Compliance Facility, Processor Facility and Secure Transporter with an approved  

 Medical Marihuana Facilities license pursuant to Chapter 22, Article V of the City Code  

 of Ordinance.  

a) Grower Facility: A commercial entity that cultivated, dries, trims or cures and packages 

Marihuana for sale to a Processor or Provisioning Center.  

  

b) Processor Facility: A commercial entity that purchases Marihuana from a Grower and that 

extracts resin from the Marihuana or creates a Marihuana-infused product for sale and 

transfer in packaged form to a Provisioning Center.  

 

c) Safety Compliance Facility: A commercial entity that receives Marihuana from a Medical 

Marihuana Facility or registered primary caregiver, tests it for contaminants and for 

tetrahydrocannabinol and other cannabinoids, returns the test results, and may return the 

Marihuana to the Medical Marihuana Facility.  

 

d) Secure Transporter: A commercial entity that store Marihuana and transports Marihuana 

between Medical Marihuana Facilities for a fee.  



 

 

That Division 8. B-3 Highway service district. Section 30-243. Permitted uses. Of the Code of the City of 

Albion (1984) Chapter 30 Zoning is hereby amended to add:  

 

l. State Licensed Medical Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility and Secure Transporter with an 

    approved Medical Marihuana Facilities license pursuant to Chapter 22, Article V of the City Code of  

    Ordinance.  

1. No Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter shall be 

located within five hundred (500) feet of real property comprising a public or 

private elementary, licensed child care facility, vocational or secondary school.    

 

2. No Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter shall be 

located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of real property comprising of a 

public park. Any Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure 

Transporter located more than two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five 

hundred (500) feet or real property comprising a public park shall have perimeter 

surrounded by an eight (8) foot fence. Fence shall not consist of over 40% 

opaque fence material. Fence material utilized shall be in the form of traditional 

fencing sold for retail purposed, including metal, vinyl or wood.   

 

3. No Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter shall be 

located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of real property comprising a place of 

religious worship. Any Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure 

Transporter located more than two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five 

hundred (500) feet of real property comprising a place of religious worship shall 

have perimeter surrounded by an eight (8) foot fence. Fence shall not consist of 

over 40% opaque fence material. Fence material utilized shall be in the form of 

traditional fencing sold for retail purposes, including metal, vinyl or wood.   

 

That Division 9. Section 30-269. Light industrial parks M-1 (P). of the Code of the City of Albion (1984) 

Chapter 30 Zoning is hereby amended to renumber and add:  

 

Sec. 30-269.1 Permitted Use. State Licensed Medical Marihuana Grower Facility, Safety Compliance 

Facility, Processor Facility and Secure Transporter with an approved Medical Marihuana Facilities 

license pursuant to Chapter 22, Article V of the City Code of Ordinance.  

1. No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter  

shall be located within five hundred (500) feet of real property comprising a public or private 

elementary, licensed child care facility, vocational or secondary school.  

2. No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter 

shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of real property comprising of a public 

park. Any Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure 

Transporter located more than two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five hundred (500) 

feet or real property comprising a public park shall have perimeter surrounded by an eight (8) 

foot fence. Fence shall not consist of over 40% opaque fence material. Fence material utilized 

shall be in the form of traditional fencing sold for retail purposes, including metal, vinyl or 

wood. 



3. No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter 

shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of real property comprising a place of 

religious worship. Any Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or 

Secure Transporter located more than two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five hundred 

(500) feet of real property comprising a place of religious worship shall have perimeter 

surrounded by an eight (8) foot fence. Fence shall not consist of over 40% opaque fence 

material. Fence material utilized shall be in the form of traditional fencing sold for retail 

purposes, including metal, vinyl or wood. 

 

Renumber Sec. 30-269 to Sec. 30-269.2  

 

 

That Division 10. M-2 Heavy industrial district. Section 30-283. Permitted uses. of the Code of the City 

of Albion (1984) Chapter 30 Zoning is hereby amended to change existing ff. to gg. and add: 

 

ff. State Licensed Medical Marihuana Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility 

and Secure Transporter with an approved Medical Marihuana Facilities license pursuant to Chapter 22, 

Article V of the City Code of Ordinance.  

1. No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure 

Transporter shall be located within five hundred (500) feet of real property 

comprising a public or private elementary, licensed child care facility, vocational 

or secondary school. 

 

2. No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure 

Transporter shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of real property 

comprising a public park. Any Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, 

Processor Facility or Secure Transporter located more than two hundred fifty 

(250) feet but less than five hundred (500) feet or real property comprising a 

public park shall have perimeter surrounded by an eight (8) foot fence. Fence 

shall not consist of over 40% opaque fence material. Fence material utilized 

shall be in the form of traditional fencing sold for retail purposes, including 

metal, vinyl or wood. 

 

3. No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure 

Transporter shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of real property 

comprising a place of religious worship. Any Grower Facility, Safety 

Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter located more than 

two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five hundred (500) feet of real property 

comprising a place of religious worship shall have perimeter surrounded by an 

eight (8) foot fence. Fence shall not consist of over 40% opaque fence material. 

Fence material utilized shall be in the form of traditional fencing sold for retail 

purposes, including metal, vinyl or wood.  

 

4. Lot area, setback and structure height:  

i. No minimum lot area required. 

ii. Front yard setback shall be no less than thirty (30) feet. 

iii. Side yard setback shall be no less than twenty (20) feet. 

iv. Rear yard setback shall be no less than thirty (30) feet.  

v. Structure height shall not exceed three (3) stories or fifty (50) feet. 



 

 

That Division 10. M-2 Heavy industrial district. Section 30-285. Heavy industrial parks M-2 (P). of the 

Code of the City of Albion (1984) Chapter 30 Zoning is hereby amended to read:  

 

Heavy industrial parks shall permit all uses allowed in light industrial districts, light industrial parks and 

heavy industrial districts, and shall conform to all the requirements of Section 30-269.2 of this Code.  



 

 

Page 1 of 6                                                                               Council minutes/3-19-18 

 

  

 

City of Albion 
Council Session Minutes  

March 19, 2018 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
II.  MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED 
 

III.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

IV.  ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Maurice Barnes (1), Lenn Reid (2), Sonya Brown (3), Marcola Lawler (4), 

Jeanette Spicer (5), Andrew French (6) and Mayor Brown.   
 

ABSENT: All members were present. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 

 
Sheryl Mitchell, City Manager; Stacey Levin, Assistant City Manager; Cullen 

Harkness, City Attorney; Scott Kipp, Chief Public Safety; Jim Lenardson, Director 
Public Services; and Tom Mead, Finance Director  
 

Brown moved, French supported, CARRIED, to Amend the Agenda and Add 

Item (E) under Consent Calendar-Flags on Graves. (7-0, vv) 

 

Brown moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to Amend Item (C) Discussion-

Medical Marihuana Dispensaries to Discussion/Approval of Medical Marihuana 

Dispensaries on the agenda. (6-1, rcv) (French dissenting). 
 

V.  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER’S COMMENTS 

 
Comments were received from Council Members Reid, Lawler, Spicer and 

French and Mayor Brown. 
 

VI.    CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 
City Manager Mitchell announced that this would be her last attendance at a 

regular council meeting considering her resignation which is effective March 31, 
2018 and shared information on Neighborhood Planning Councils. 

 

VII.    PRESENTATIONS 
 



 

 

Page 2 of 6                                                                               Council minutes/3-19-18 

 

  

 

 
  A. Proclamation for National Vietnam War Veterans Recognition Day 
  

 

Mayor Brown presented a Proclamation for National Vietnam War Veterans 
Recognition Day to American Legion Post #55. 

 
Comments were received from representative from American Legion Post 
#55. 

 
B. Arbor Day Proclamation 

 
Mayor Brown read aloud a Proclamation for Arbor Day. 

 

VIII.   PUBLIC HEARINGS-Albion River Trail Expansion II Grant 
 

Mayor Brown opened the Public Hearing at 7:18 p.m. 
 

No public comments were received. 

 
Mayor Brown closed the Public Hearing at 7:20 p.m. 

 

A. Request Approval Resolution #2018-08, Resolution Authorizing Michigan 
Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant Application for Albion River Trail 

Expansion II. 
 

Comments were received from City Manager Mitchell who gave a brief 

overview of the grant application for the Albion River Trail Expansion II. 
 

French moved, Reid supported, CARRIED, To Approve Resolution #2018-08, 
Resolution Authorizing Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant 
Application for Albion River Trail Expansion II as presented. (7-0, rcv) 

 
IX.  PUBLIC Comments (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their comments to 

agenda items and to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required.) 

 

Comments were received from Dr. Stacey Levin, Assistant City Manager; Tom 
Mead, Finance Director; Jim Lenardson, Director of Public Services; LaVada 

Weeks, 917 Luther Dr; Sandra Taylor, 1500 E. Michigan Avenue and Jim Stuart, 
205 W. Oak St. 
 

X.  CONSENT CALENDAR (vv) (Items on Consent Calendar are vote4d on as one 
unit) 

 
A. Approval Regular Session Minutes, March 5, 2018 
B. Approval Special Session Minutes, March 12, 2018 

C. Approval Special Session Minutes, March 13, 2018 



 

 

Page 3 of 6                                                                               Council minutes/3-19-18 

 

  

 

D. Approval for Knights of Columbus, Annual Statewide Tootsie Roll Drive on 
March 23, 24 & 25th, 2018 

E.  Approval to Place Flags on Veterans Graves 
 
French moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, To Approve Consent Calendar as 

presented. (7-0, vv) 
 

XI.  ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 
 

A. Discussion Ordinance # 2018-02, An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 30, Article 

II, Section (s) 30-26 through 30-28, 30-30 through 30-36, to add sections 30-37 
through 30-39 to Article II of Chapter 30 

 
Director of Public Services Lenardson and Cemetery Sexton Patrick Miller 
gave a brief overview of the ordinance and why it was needed.  The 

ordinance will expand the current rules and regulations and make it easier to 
enforce. 

 
Comments were received from Council Members Spicer and French; City 
Attorney Harkness; Mayor Brown and City Manager Mitchell. 

 
French moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, to Approve 1st Reading 

Ordinance # 2018-02, An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 30, Article II, Section 
(s) 30-26 through 30-28, 30-30 through 30-36, to add sections 30-37 through 30-
39 to Article II of Chapter 30 as presented. (7-0, rcv) 

 
B. Request Approval Resolution # 2018-09, A Resolution to Approve Amendment 

to Schedule of Fees to Include New Cemetery Fees (RCV) 

 
City Manager Mitchell explained the cemetery fees had not been raised in a 

several years.  She asked to amend the resolution to include a 25% discount 
on multiple lot purchases of twelve (12) or more. 

 

Comments were received from Council Member Spicer and Mayor Brown. 
 

French moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, to Amend Resolution # 2018-09, A 
Resolution to Approve Amendment to Schedule of Fees to Include New 
Cemetery Fees to Include a 25% on multiple lot purchases of twelve (12) or 

more. (7-0, rcv) 
 

French moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, to Approve Resolution # 2018-09, 
A Resolution to Approve Amendment to Schedule of Fees to Include New 
Cemetery Fees including a 25% on multiple lot purchases of twelve (12) or 

more. 
 

C. Discussion/Approval Medical Marihuana Dispensaries (RCV) 

 



 

 

Page 4 of 6                                                                               Council minutes/3-19-18 

 

  

 

Comments were received from Council Members Brown and French; City 
Attorney Harkness and Mayor Brown. 

 
Brown moved, Barnes supported, CARRIED, to Approve Medical Marihuana 
Dispensaries in the City of Albion. (4-3, rcv) (Reid, Spicer, French dissenting). 

 
D. Discussion-Community Development Corporations 

 
Mayor Brown stated he would like to start the Community Development 
Corporations to overlap with the Rising Tide Project. 

 
City Manager Mitchell stated clarification would be needed to differentiate 

between the Neighborhood Planning Council and the Community 
Development Corporations. 

 

Mayor Brown stated the Community Development Corporations are 
incorporated and may provide legal access to funding that would may be 

helpful.  He would like this to be part of the Council goal setting session as 
goals the Council had previously set were relative to neighborhood 
stabilization and food access. 

 
Council Member French stated Community Development Corporations are 

generally created if there is a real need in the community that entities 
currently in place are not meeting. 

 

E. Request Approval for Quote/Proposal for Pre-Demolition & Asbestos 
Inspection for 608 Austin Avenue (RCV) 

 

Comments were received from Council Members Barnes, Brown and Spicer; 
City Manager Mitchell and Mayor Brown. 

 
French moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, To Amend Motion to Add a 
$2,000 limit. (7-0, rcv) 

 
Barnes moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, To Approve Quote/Proposal for 

Pre-Demolition & Asbestos Inspection with a $2,000 limit for 608 Austin Avenue. 
(7-0, rcv) 

 

F.  Request Approval of Land Lease Agreement with NEW PAR, a Delaware 
Partnership d/b/a/ Verizon Wireless (RCV) 

 
Comments were received from City Manager Mitchell. 

 

French moved, Reid supported, CARRIED, to Approve Land Lease Agreement 
with NEW PAR, a Delaware Partnership d/b/a/ Verizon Wireless as presented. 
(7-0, rcv) 

 



 

 

Page 5 of 6                                                                               Council minutes/3-19-18 

 

  

 

G. Discussion/Approval of Project Rising Tide Communities-Joint Memorandum 
of Understanding (RCV) 

 
Comments were received from City Manager Mitchell. 

 

French moved, Reid supported, CARRIED, to Approve Project Rising Tide 
Communities-Joint Memorandum of Understanding as presented. (7-0, rcv) 

 
H. Request Approval for Selection of Candidates for Interim City Manager 

Position (RCV) 

 
Comments were received from Council Members French, Barnes, Reid and 

Spicer and Mayor Brown. 
 

Council Member French moved to Call the Question. 

 
French moved, Barnes supported, CARRIED, To Call the Question on Approval 

of Selection of Candidates for Interim City Manager Position. (7-0, rcv) 
 

Brown moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to Approve Chief Scott Kipp and 

Amy Robertson as Interview Candidates for the Interim City Manager Position.  
(5-2, rcv) (Barnes and Reid dissenting). 

 
I.   Request Approval of Albion-Marshall Connector Agreement and 

Authorization of Payment (RCV)  

 
Comments were received from Council Member Lawler, City Manager 
Mitchell and Mayor Brown. 

 
French moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, To Approve Albion-Marshall 

Connector Agreement and Authorization of Payment as presented. (6-1, rcv) 
(Barnes dissenting). 

 

XII.  Future Agenda Items 
 

 Mayor Brown asked for a Special Council meeting on Thursday, March 22, 
2018 at 6:00 p.m.to interview Interim City Manager Candidates 

 City Attorney Harkness asked for a Discussion on Medical Marihuana 

Dispensaries ordinance to the April 2nd, 2018 Council meeting 
 Council Member French asked for a Proclamation & certificates for the 

National Mayor and County Recognition Day for National Service be added 
to the April 2nd, 2018 Council meeting 

 Council Member Lawler asked if Krista Trout-Edwards, Director Calhoun 

County Land Bank would give an update on the Union Steel property 
 Council Member Brown asked for a 100th Birthday proclamation be added to 

the April 2nd, 2018 Council meeting 



 

 

Page 6 of 6                                                                               Council minutes/3-19-18 

 

  

 

 Council Member French asked for a discussion/approval for the MML to be 
the consultant for the City Manager Search 

 Council Member Brown asked for an EDC update at the April 2nd, 2018 
Council meeting. 
 

XIII.  Motion to Excuse Absent Council Member (s) 
 

No action was necessary as all members were present. 
 
 

 
XIV.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their comments to no more 

than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required). 

 

Comments were received from Chris Herweyer, 400 E Cass St; Wayne Arnold, 
906 Hall St; Eric Worley, 420 Allen Place; Karen Yankie, 104 Irwin Avenue and Jim 
Stuart, 205 W. Oak St. 

 
XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Brown moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, to ADJOURN Regular Council 
Session. (7-0, vv). 

 
Mayor Brown adjourned the Regular Session at 8:19 p.m. 
 

March 22, 2018 
__________________     

   Date 
 

**Minutes were taken by Stacey Levin, Assistant City Manager 



 

 

Page 1 of 6                                                                               Council minutes/4-2-18 

 

  

 

City of Albion 

Council Session Minutes  

April 2, 2018 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

II.  MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED 

 

III.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV.  ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Maurice Barnes (1), Lenn Reid (2), Sonya Brown (3), Marcola Lawler (4), 

Jeanette Spicer (5), Andrew French (6) and Mayor Brown.   

 

ABSENT: All members were present. 

 

STAFF PRESENT: 

 

Scott Kipp, Interim City Manager; Stacey Levin, Assistant City Manager; Cullen 

Harkness, City Attorney; Jill Doming, City Clerk and John Tracy, Director 

Planning, Building & Code Enforcement. 

 

V.  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER’S COMMENTS 

 

Comments were received from Council Member Lawler who asked to have 

Item (G) Discussion/Update on Union Steel Building postponed until the next 

meeting. 

 

Lawler moved, French supported, CARRIED, to Postpone Item (G) 

Discussion/Update on Union Steel Building until the next Council meeting. (7-0, 

vv) 

 

VI.    CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 

Interim City Manager Kipp stated the City has taken possession of the new 

Vactor truck and employees are currently being trained on how to use it. 

 

VII.    PRESENTATIONS 

 

A. National Mayor/County Service Day Proclamation 

 



 

 

Page 2 of 6                                                                               Council minutes/4-2-18 

 

  

 

Mayor Brown read aloud the National Mayor/County Service Day Proclamation 

and presented to the AmeriCorps Vista team. 

 

Comments were received from Council Member French. 

 

VIII.   PUBLIC HEARINGS-None 

 

 

IX.  PUBLIC Comments (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their comments to 

agenda items and to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required.) 

 

Comments were received from Mark Lelle, 422 Elizabeth St and Bill Dobbins, 

15901 E. Michigan Avenue. 

 

X.  CONSENT CALENDAR (vv) (Items on Consent Calendar are vote4d on as one 

unit) 

 

A. Approval Special Session Minutes, March 22, 2018 

B. Approval Special Session Minutes, March 26, 2018 

C. Approve Assembly Permit for Swingin’ at the Shell Summer Concerts 

D. Approval Assembly Permit for St. Johns Church for Combined Mass & Picnic 

on September 16, 2018 from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. in Victory Park Large Pavilion 

 

French moved, Reid supported, CARRIED, To Approve Consent Calendar as 

presented. (7-0, vv) 

 

XI.  ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 

 

A. Request Approval 2nd Reading and Adoption of Ordinance # 2018-02, An 

Ordinance to Amend Chapter 30, Article II, Section (s) 30-26 through 30-28, 

30-30 through 30-36, to add sections 30-37 through 30-39 to Article II of 

Chapter 30 

 

Comments were received from Attorney Harkness and Mayor Brown.  

 

French moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, to Approve 2nd Reading and 

Adoption of Ordinance # 2018-02, An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 30, 

Article II, Section (s) 30-26 through 30-28, 30-30 through 30-36, to add sections 

30-37 through 30-39 to Article II of Chapter 30 as presented. (7-0, rcv) 

 

B. Request Approval Resolution # 2018-10, A Resolution for the Establishment of 

Neighborhood Planning Councils Within the City of Albion & By-Laws (RCV) 

 

Comments were received from Council Members Spicer and Brown; Mayor 

Brown and Andrew Texel, AmeriCorps Vista member, 

 



 

 

Page 3 of 6                                                                               Council minutes/4-2-18 

 

  

 

French moved, Reid supported, CARRIED, to Approve Resolution # 2018-10, A 

Resolution for the Establishment of Neighborhood Planning Councils Within 

the City of Albion & By-Laws as presented. (7-0, rcv) 

 

C. Discussion/Approval Resolution # 2018-11, A Resolution of Support of North 

Country Trail Association “Trail Town” Designation (RCV) 

 

Comments were received from Mayor Brown. 

 

French moved, Reid supported, CARRIED, to Approve Resolution # 2018-11, A 

Resolution of Support of North Country Trail Association “Trail Town” 

Designation as presented. (7-0, rcv) 

 

D. Request Approval of Annual Mechanical Amusement Devices for: (RCV) 

 

1. Albion College 

2. Cascarelli’s Tavern 

3. Leisure Hour Club 

4. Redbox Automated 

5. Spartan Stores/Family Fare 

 

French moved, Reid supported, CARRIED, to Approve Annual Mechanical 

Amusement Devices as presented. (7-0, rcv) 

 

E. Request Approval of Annual Commercial Garbage Service for: (RCV) 

 

1. Republic Waste 

2. Waste Management 

3. Granger Container Service (Residential & Commercial) 

 

French moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to Approve Annual Commercial 

Garbage Service as presented. (7-0, rcv) 

 

F.  Discussion/Approval RFQ for City Manager Search (RCV) 

 

Comments were received from Council Member French; Mayor Brown; City 

Attorney Harkness and Interim City Manager Kipp. 

 

*It was noted the public notice date should be changed from April 25, 2004 

to April 25, 2018 at 3:00 p.m. as the deadline date for RFQ’s to be received. 

 

The Council approved the following changes to the RFQ: 

 

French moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, to Remove coordinate 

psychological assessments (pg. 4 (A) from the RFQ. (7-0, vv) 

 



 

 

Page 4 of 6                                                                               Council minutes/4-2-18 

 

  

 

French moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to Remove assist the City with 

negotiating a contract (pg. 4 (A) and (pg. 5 (9) from the RFQ. (7-0, vv) 

 

Brown moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, To Change twenty-four (24) to 

thirty-six (36) (pg. 6 (B)on the RFQ. (7-0, vv) 

 

French moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, to Change five (5) clients to three 

(3) clients on the RFQ. (7-0, vv) 

 

Council Member Brown asked for Point of Order. 

 

French moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to Remove Mayor and Council 

will review alternate proposals and may recommend a proposal from more 

than one respondent (pg. 9 (13) from the RFQ. (7-0, vv) 

 

French moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, to Change numbers and 

coordinating words to match i.e. four (4) and eight (8) on the RFQ. (7-0, vv) 

 

Spicer moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, to Approve RFQ for City Manager 

Search with the above corrections. (7-0, rcv) 

 

G. Discussion/Update on Union Steel Building 

 

This item has been postponed until the April 16th, 2018 Council meeting. 

 

H. Discussion-Ordinance for Medical Marihuana Dispensaries 

 

City Attorney Harkness stated he needed the following information from the 

Council to proceed with the Medical Marihuana Dispensaries: 

 

1. Location of dispensaries 

2. Distance from schools, child care facilities, public parks, places of 

worship and residential areas 

3. Hours of operation 

4. Total number of dispensary licenses 

 

Comments were received from Council Members Barnes, Lawler, French, 

Brown, Spicer and Reid; Mayor Brown; City Attorney Harkness and Director of 

Planning, Building & Code Enforcement. 

 

The consensus of the Council is the following: 

 

1. Location  

 

Dispensaries shall be limited to the B-3, M-1-P, M-2, and M-2-P Zoning 

Districts. 

 



 

 

Page 5 of 6                                                                               Council minutes/4-2-18 

 

  

 

 

2. Distance (s) 

A. Schools and child care facilities 

No Dispensary shall be located within five hundred (500) feet of real 

property comprising a public or private elementary, licensed child 

care facility, vocational or secondary school. 

B.  Public parks and places of worship  

No Dispensary shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of real 

property comprising a public park. Any Dispensary located more than 

two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five hundred (500) feet of real 

property comprising a public park shall be surrounded by a fence as 

required by city ordinance. 

 

C.  Residential areas: 

No Dispensary shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of 

real property. 

 

3. Hours of Operation 

 

Discussion among the Council was to have hours similar to pharmacy 

hours.  With a suggested time of 9 a.m. to 7 p.m.  Monday through 

Saturday and 10 a.m. to 3 p.m. on Sunday.  Council requested 

additional time to consider the hours of operation and will continue 

discussion at the start of the Goal Setting meeting held on April 9th, 

2018 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

4. Total number of Licenses for Dispensaries 

 

The consensus of the Council is to approve two (2) marihuana 

dispensaries licenses. 

 

I.   Request Approval of Employment Agreement with Chief Scott Kipp for Interim 

City Manager Position (RCV)  

 

Comments were received from City Attorney Harkness. 

 

French moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, To Approve Employment 

Agreement with Chief Scott Kipp for Interim City Manager Position as 

presented. (7-0, rcv) 

 

XII.  Future Agenda Items 

 

 Mayor Brown asked for the following items on the next agenda: 



 

 

Page 6 of 6                                                                               Council minutes/4-2-18 

 

  

 

 An update on Superior Street with an MDOT representative 

 Study Session Date for Council Rules & Procedures with Attorney Scott Smith 

 Council Member Spicer asked to identify the top three (3) goals for the Rising 

Tide project for the goal setting session. 

 Council Member Lawler asked for a Discussion/Update on the Union Steel 

building be added to the next agenda. 

 Council Member Brown asked for proclamations for 100-year-old birthdays be 

added to the next agenda. 

 Council Member Barnes asked for an asbestos inspection update for Austin 

Avenue property be added to the next agenda. 

 

XIII.  Motion to Excuse Absent Council Member (s) 

 

No action was necessary as all members were present. 

 

XIV.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their comments to no more 

than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required). 

 

Comments were received from Eric Worley, President & CEO Greater Albion 

Chamber of Commerce & Visitors Bureau; Wanda Kemp, 703 Valhalla Dr; 

Alfredia Dysart-Drake, 1016 S. Superior St; Ronnie Sims, 710 W. Erie St and 

Calhoun County Commissioner Gary Tompkins.  

 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Brown moved, French supported, CARRIED, to ADJOURN Regular Council 

Session. (7-0, vv). 

 

Mayor Brown adjourned the Regular Session at 8:35 p.m. 

 

 

__________________    _________________________ 

Date      Jill Domingo   
        City Clerk 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 4                                                                               study session minutes/4-9-18 

 

 

City of Albion 

Study Session Minutes 

April 9, 2018 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

II.  ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Council Members Lenn Reid (2), Marcola Lawler (4) and Andrew French (6) 

and Mayor Brown.  

 

ABSENT: Council Member Barnes (1), Sonya Brown (3) and Jeanette Spicer (5). 

 

STAFF PRESENT: 

 

Scott Kipp, Interim City Manager; Cullen Harkness, City Attorney; Jill Domingo, City 

Clerk; Stacey Levin, Assistant City Manager; and John Tracy, Director Planning, 

Building & Code Enforcement. 

 

III.     PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their comments to agenda items only 

            and to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required). 

 

No public comments were received. 
 

IV. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 

 

A. Discussion-Medical Marihuana Dispensaries 

 

City Attorney Harkness stated he needed the following information from the 

Council to proceed with the Medical Marihuana Dispensaries: 

 

1. Hours of Operation: 

 

Council discussed this at the last Council meeting but did not make a 

determination on the hours of operation.  City Attorney Harkness recommends the 

hours be from 9 a.m. to 8 p.m./7 days a week.  He does not suggest changing the 

hours on Sunday as it could lead to legal implications.  He also stated the above 

hours are conservative and that most municipalities with dispensaries are 

maintaining later hours with some being open until 11:00 p.m.   

 

2. Fencing Requirement: 

 

City Attorney Harkness stated he would like to see a waiver in the fencing 

requirement for dispensaries that may be located in a strip mall. 

 



 

Page 2 of 4                                                                               study session minutes/4-9-18 

 

 

He suggested a waiver stating the fencing requirement would be waived if other 

security measures are in place for the safety of the business and the public. 

 

3. Number of Licenses: 

 

City Attorney Harkness suggests the City will issue a total of twenty (20) Medical 

Marihuana licenses with no more than two (2) of the licenses for dispensaries 

 

4. Provision for Dispensaries: 

 

City Attorney suggests adding a provision to the Medical Marihuana Ordinance 

stating no staff member or doctor may be onsite to issue Medical Marihuana 

cards.  This maintains focus on the medical use and cuts down on abuse. 

 

Questions/Comments from Council were as follows: 

 

 What would the legal implications be if the City choose to have different 

hours on Sunday?  The City is relating these hours to those of pharmacies 

which the City does not regulate. If a court action were pursued, the City 

would be required to provide a compelling & significant reason to change 

the hours for Sunday.  Religious reasons would not suffice as a significant 

and compelling reason for the change in hours. 

 Where are other municipalities allowing dispensaries?  Most are allowing 

them in industrial & commercial areas. 

 Adding the dispensaries will change six (6) or seven (7) sections of the 

Medical Marihuana Ordinance. 

 Council would like to bring Ordinance as a 1st Reading/Approval at the 

next Council meeting on April 16th.  

 

Council consensus on the Medical Marijuana dispensaries are as follows: 

 

Hours of Operation- 9 a.m. to 8 p.m. 

Fencing Requirement-May be waived if located in a strip mall and other security 

measures are in place for the safety of the business and the public. 

Number of Licenses: The City will issue a total of twenty (20) Medical Marihuana 

licenses with no more than two (2) of the licenses for dispensaries. 

Location: Dispensaries shall be limited to the B-3, M-1-P, M-2, and M-2-P Zoning 

Districts. 

Distance: 

 Schools and child care facilities-no Dispensary shall be located within five hundred 

(500) feet of real property comprising a public or private elementary, licensed 

child care facility, vocational or secondary school. 

Public parks and places of worship-no Dispensary shall be located within two 

hundred fifty (250) feet of real property comprising a public park. Any Dispensary 

located more than two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five hundred (500) feet 



 

Page 3 of 4                                                                               study session minutes/4-9-18 

 

 

of real property comprising a public park shall be surrounded by a fence as 

required by city ordinance. 

Residential areas-no Dispensary shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet 

of real property. 

Comments were received from Council Members French, Reid and Lawler and 

Mayor Brown. 

 

B. Goal Setting Session 

 

Mayor Brown suggested the following Council goals: 

 

 Neighborhood Stabilization-research & planning 

 Infrastructure-Possible millage for sidewalk & street repair 

 Economic Development-Employment & Underemployment Issues 

 

Questions/Comments from Council were as follows: 

 

 What is the role of the City pertaining to employment & underemployment?   

 Is this to focus the EDC in a certain direction? 

 What are the specific goals for neighborhood stabilization and will it involve 

the newly created Neighborhood Planning Councils? 

 Infrastructure is a high priority.   

 The City needs to invest in the streets. 

 The need for streets is a higher priority than sidewalks. 

 Would like to see an alternative senior housing with various income levels 

such as quality one story houses. 

 Would like to see continued partnership with Calhoun County Landbank 

along with additional partnerships for Neighborhood Stabilization goal. 

 Timeframe for Neighborhood Planning Councils to be in place? Early Spring 

 Important for Council to discuss with the Neighborhood Planning Councils 

what goals they would like to see accomplished. 

 Water/Sewer infrastructure and the new water tower also need to be a 

component in the infrastructure category. 

 

The consensus of the Council is to establish the following goals: 

 

1. Neighborhood Stabilization 

2. Infrastructure- Streets/Sidewalks/Water/Sewer 

3. Quality Affordable Housing- Senior & General 

4. Governance-Would like to see this completed in the next 3-6 months before 

New City Manager starts.  MML Training for Boards & Commissions/Council 

Rules with Attorney Scott Smith. 

5. Implementing a Master Calendar 

6. Vision-What type of community are we planning for and utilizing resources to 

achieve these goals.  Should start with Neighborhood Planning Councils. 

7. New Water Tower 



 

Page 4 of 4                                                                               study session minutes/4-9-18 

 

 

 

Mayor Brown asked for a discussion item on Council goals be added to the April 16, 

2018 Council agenda. 

 

Comments were received from Council Members French, Reid and Lawler; Mayor 

Brown; Interim City Manager Kipp and Andrew Texel, AmeriCorps Vista member. 

 

 

V.     PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 

            comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required). 

 

No public comments were received. 

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Reid moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to ADJOURN Study Session. (4-0, vv). 

 

Mayor Brown adjourned the Study Session at 7:24 p.m. 

 

 

__________________    _________________________ 

Date      Jill Domingo    
        City Clerk 

 

















RESOLUTION # 2018-12 

 

A Resolution for the Michigan Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Funding for the Peabody Block Project 

 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Albion has been invited by the Michigan Strategic Fund to 
submit a CDBG application in the amount of $828,800; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Albion desires to use the CDBG funds for the Peabody Block 
Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed project is consistent with the local community development 
plan as described in the Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed project will clearly eliminate objectively determinable signs 
of blight and will be strictly limited to eliminating specific instances of blight outside a 
defined Slum or Blighted Area; and 
 
WHEREAS, local funds and any other funds to be invested in the project have not been 
obligated and will not be obligated prior to a formal grant award, completion of the 
environmental review procedures and a formal written authorization to incur costs from 
the Michigan Economic Development Corporation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Albion City Council hereby 
designates the City Manager or Interim City Manager as the Certifying Officer, the 
person authorized to certify the Michigan CDBG Application, and the person authorized 
to sign the Grant Agreement and payment requests.  
 
Date: April 16, 2018 
 
Ayes: _______ 
 
Nays: _______ 
 
Absent: _______ 
 
I certify that this resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Albion on 
April 16, 2018. 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jill Domingo 
City Clerk 





 

 Devon Title Agency
720 Capital Ave SW

Battle Creek, MI  49015
Phone:  (269) 964-7324
Fax:  (269) 964-7424

File No. 718403

INVOICE
To: CC To:
Calhoun County Land Bank
315 W. Green Street
Marshall, MI  49068
Attention:  Krista Trout-Edwards
kedwards@calhouncountymi.gov

Invoice Date: 3/23/2018
Sellers: The Calhoun County Land Bank Authority
Buyers: City of Albion
Property Address: 114 West Ash Street, Albion, MI  49224
Customer Reference:

Sale Price:  $1.00 Mortgage Amount:

Description Amount Total

Basic Owner $370.00 $370.00

Invoice Total $370.00

 “PROTECT YOURSELF AGAINST WIRE FRAUD”

Devon Title Agency will NEVER change our wire instructions via an email.  If you receive an email changing·
Devon Title Agency’s wire instructions STOP and call Devon Title Agency at a verified phone number.

If you receive wire instructions via email CALL Devon Title Agency at a verified phone number to confirm the·
instructions.

Devon Title Agency WILL NOT wire Seller/Borrower proceeds without a signed original “Authorization to Wire”·
form.



DEVON TITLE AGENCY
720 Capital Ave SW

Battle Creek, MI  49015
Phone:  (269) 964-7324
Fax:  (269) 964-7424
www.devontitle.com

Agent for Old Republic National Title Insurance Company

Transaction Identification Data for reference only:

Property Address: 114 West Ash Street, Albion, MI 49224 Commitment No. 718403

COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE
SCHEDULE A

1. Commitment Date:  March 05, 2018, at 8:00 am

2. Policy to be issued:

OWNERS POLICY AMOUNT

(a)ALTA Owner's Policy (6-17-06) (WITH STANDARD EXCEPTIONS)  $1.00

Proposed Insured:
City of Albion

3. The estate or interest in the Land described or referred to in this Commitment is: Fee Simple

4.Title to the Fee Simple estate or interest in the Land is at the Commitment Date vested in:
The Calhoun County Land Bank Authority

5. The Land is described as follows:

LAND SITUATED IN THE CITY OF ALBION, COUNTY OF CALHOUN, STATE OF MI DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

THE WEST 22 FEET OF LOT NO. 10, BLOCK 64, OF THE ORIGINAL PLAT OF THE VILLAGE (NOW CITY) OF
ALBION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 2 OF PLATS, ON PAGE 40, IN THE
OFFICE OF THE REGISTER OF DEEDS FOR CALHOUN COUNTY, MICHIGAN

DEVON TITLE AGENCY

By:

Curt Dinkelmeyer, Authorized Signatory

This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Old Republic National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment
is not valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I – Requirements; Schedule
B, Part II – Exceptions and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. Generated 3/23/2018 11:40 AM

www.devontitle.com


Devon Title Agency ALTA Commitment for Title Insurance Commitment No. 718403

SCHEDULE B, PART I
Requirements

All of the following Requirements must be met:

1. The Proposed Insured must notify the Company in writing of the name of any party not referred to in this Commitment
who will obtain an interest in the Land or who will make a loan on the Land. The Company may then make additional
Requirements or Exceptions.

2. Pay the agreed amount for the estate or interest to be insured.

3. Pay the premiums, fees, and charges for the Policy to the Company.

4. Documents satisfactory to the Company that convey the Title or create the Mortgage to be insured, or both, must be
properly authorized, executed, delivered, and recorded in the Public Records.

5. Pay unpaid taxes and assessments unless shown paid.

6. The insurer must be notified of any construction improvements, renovations or remodeling and reserves the right to
add any additional requirements.

NOTE:  A search of the Calhoun County Records, as of the effective date herein, reveals that the subject property is7.
free and clear of any existing mortgages.  If there are any existing open mortgages, disclosed by the borrower or
reflected on a credit report, please contact Devon Title Agency immediately so that the commitment can be revised
accordingly.

A copy of the Resolution of the Board of Directors of The Calhoun County Land Bank Authority, authorizing the sale of8.
the subject property to the recited purchaser and directing the proper officers to execute the proposed conveyance on
behalf of the Corporation, must be furnished to the Company.

Record Warranty Deed from The Calhoun County Land Bank Authority, a Michigan corporation to the party to be9.
insured.

NOTE:  The address(s) recited herein is/are for informational purposes only.  The Company neither guarantees nor10.
insures its accuracy.

NOTE:  No liability is assumed by the company for ascertaining the status of utility charges and the insured is11.
cautioned to obtain the current status of these payments.

NOTE:  The following information is provided for informational purposes only, the accuracy of which is neither12.
guaranteed nor insured, including but not limited to Principal Residence Exemption status.  No liability is assumed by
the Company for increase occasioned by retroactive revaluation or change in land usage or loss of any Principal
Residence Exemption status for insured premises.

Tax Information as found:
Commonly known as: 114 West Ash Street, Albion, MI
Tax I.D. Number: 13-51-001-095-00
TAX EXEMPT PARCEL
Special Assessments: None
Principal Residence Exemption: 0% for tax year 2017
School District: Marshall

This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Old Republic National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment
is not valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I - Requirements; Schedule
B, Part II - Exceptions and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. Generated 3/23/2018 11:40 AM



Devon Title Agency ALTA Commitment for Title Insurance Commitment No. 718403

SCHEDULE B, PART II
Exceptions

THIS COMMITMENT DOES NOT REPUBLISH ANY COVENANT, CONDITION, RESTRICTION, OR LIMITATION
CONTAINED IN ANY DOCUMENT REFERRED TO IN THIS COMMITMENT TO THE EXTENT THAT THE SPECIFIC
COVENANT, CONDITION, RESTRICTION, OR LIMITATION VIOLATES STATE OR FEDERAL LAW BASED ON RACE,
COLOR, RELIGION, SEX, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, GENDER IDENTITY, HANDICAP, FAMILIAL STATUS, OR
NATIONAL ORIGIN.

The Policy will not insure against loss or damage resulting from the terms and provisions of any lease or easement
identified in Schedule A, and will include the following Exceptions unless cleared to the satisfaction of the Company:

1. Any defect, lien, encumbrance, adverse claim, or other matter that appears for the first time in the Public Records or
is created, attaches, or is disclosed between the Commitment Date and the date on which all of the Schedule B, Part
I - Requirements are met.

2. Any facts, rights, interests, or claims which are not shown by the Public Records but that could be ascertained by an
inspection of the Land or by making inquiry of persons in possession of the Land.

3. Easements, liens, or encumbrances, or claims thereof not shown by the Public Records.

4. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title including
discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area, or any other facts that would be disclosed by an accurate
and complete land survey of the Land, and that are not shown in the Public Records.

5. Any liens or right to lien for services, labor or material imposed by law and not shown by the Public Records.

6. Rights and claims of parties in possession, and anyone claiming by, through or under them.

7. Homestead rights, if any, of the spouse of any individual insured or of any individual shown herein to be a party in
interest.

8. Building and use restrictions not appearing in the record chain of title, but omitting restrictions, if any, based on race,
color, religion or national origin.

9. Taxes and assessments not due and payable at Commitment Date.

10.The lien, if any, of real estate taxes, assessments, and/or water and sewer charges, not yet due and payable or that
are not shown as existing liens in the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes or assessments on real property
or in the Public Records; including the lien for taxes, assessments, and/or water and sewer charges, which may be
added to the tax rolls or tax bill after the Date of Closing. The Company assumes no liability for the tax increases
occasioned by the retroactive revaluation or changes in the Land usage or loss of any homestead exemption status
for the insured premises.

11.The address(s) recited herein is/are for informational purposes only.  The Company neither guarantees nor insures its
accuracy.

12.No liability is assumed by the company for ascertaining the status of utility charges and the insured is cautioned to
obtain the current status of these payments.

Oil, gas and mineral reservations of every kind and nature and all rights, privileges pertinent or incidental thereto,13.
recorded or unrecorded.

Subject to any municipal regulation, including, but not limited to, water, sewer and septic which requires an inspection14.
prior to the sale and/or transfer of the subject property.

Oil, gas, mineral and aboriginal antiquities reserved by the State of Michigan by Deed recorded in Liber 2912 Page15.
537, Calhoun County Records.

This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Old Republic National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment
is not valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I - Requirements; Schedule
B, Part II - Exceptions and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. Generated 3/23/2018 11:40 AM



Any and all easements and restrictions as shown on the recorded plat.16.

Easement rights in favor of any and all utility companies, public or otherwise, over and across the land described in17.
Schedule A for the location, servicing and maintenance of facilities located on, over or under land, if any.



ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE
ISSUED BY

OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
Commitment No. 718403

NOTICE

IMPORTANT - READ CAREFULLY: THIS COMMITMENT IS AN OFFER TO ISSUE ONE OR MORE TITLE INSURANCE
POLICIES.  ALL CLAIMS OR REMEDIES SOUGHT AGAINST THE COMPANY INVOLVING THE CONTENT OF THIS
COMMITMENT OR THE POLICY MUST BE BASED SOLELY IN CONTRACT.

THIS COMMITMENT IS NOT AN ABSTRACT OF TITLE, REPORT OF THE CONDITION OF TITLE, LEGAL OPINION,
OPINION OF TITLE, OR OTHER REPRESENTATION OF THE STATUS OF TITLE.  THE PROCEDURES USED BY
THE COMPANY TO DETERMINE INSURABILITY OF THE TITLE, INCLUDING ANY SEARCH AND EXAMINATION,
ARE PROPRIETARY TO THE COMPANY, WERE PERFORMED SOLELY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE COMPANY,
AND CREATE NO EXTRA CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY TO ANY PERSON, INCLUDING A PROPOSED INSURED.

THE COMPANY'S OBLIGATION UNDER THIS COMMITMENT IS TO ISSUE A POLICY TO A PROPOSED INSURED
IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE A IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF THIS COMMITMENT. THE
COMPANY HAS NO LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION INVOLVING THE CONTENT OF THIS COMMITMENT TO ANY
OTHER PERSON.

COMMITMENT TO ISSUE POLICY

Subject to the Notice; Schedule B, Part I - Requirements; Schedule B, Part II - Exceptions; and the Commitment
Conditions, Old Republic National Title Insurance Company (the “Company”), commits to issue the Policy according to
the terms and provisions of this Commitment.  This Commitment is effective as of the Commitment Date shown in
Schedule A for each Policy described in Schedule A, only when the Company has entered in Schedule A both the
specified dollar amount as the Proposed Policy Amount and the name of the Proposed Insured.

If all of the Schedule B, Part I - Requirements have not been met within 90 days after the Commitment Date, this
Commitment terminates and the Company's liability and obligation end.

Issued through the Office of:

DEVON TITLE AGENCY
OLD REPUBLIC TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY

A Stock Company
400 Second Ave. South, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55401

(612) 371-1111

By:

Curt Dinkelmeyer, Authorized Signatory

This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Old Republic National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment
is not valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I - Requirements; Schedule
B, Part II - Exceptions and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. Generated 3/23/2018 11:40 AM



COMMITMENT CONDITIONS

DEFINITIONS1.

“Knowledge” or “Known”: Actual or imputed knowledge, but not constructive notice imparted by the Public(a)
Records.
“Land”: The land described in Schedule A and affixed improvements that by law constitute real property. The(b)
term “Land” does not include any property beyond the lines of the area described in Schedule A, nor any right,
title, interest, estate, or easement in abutting streets, roads, avenues, alleys, lanes, ways, or waterways, but this
does not modify or limit the extent that a right of access to and from the Land is to be insured by the Policy.
“Mortgage”: A mortgage, deed of trust, or other security instrument, including one evidenced by electronic(c)
means authorized by law.
“Policy”: Each contract of title insurance, in a form adopted by the American Land Title Association, issued or to(d)
be issued by the Company pursuant to this Commitment.
“Proposed Insured”: Each person identified in Schedule A as the Proposed Insured of each Policy to be issued(e)
pursuant to this Commitment.
“Proposed Policy Amount”: Each dollar amount specified in Schedule A as the Proposed Policy Amount of each(f)
Policy to be issued pursuant to this Commitment.
“Public Records”: Records established under state statutes at the Commitment Date for the purpose of(g)
imparting constructive notice of matters relating to real property to purchasers for value and without Knowledge.
“Title”: The estate or interest described in Schedule A.(h)

If all of the Schedule B, Part I - Requirements have not been met within the time period specified in the Commitment to2.
Issue Policy, this Commitment terminates and the Company's liability and obligation end.

The Company's liability and obligation is limited by and this Commitment is not valid without:3.
(a)the Notice;
(b)the Commitment to Issue Policy;
(c)the Commitment Conditions;
(d)Schedule A;
(e)Schedule B, Part I - Requirements;
(f)Schedule B, Part II - Exceptions;
(g)a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form.

COMPANY'S RIGHT TO AMEND4.

The Company may amend this Commitment at any time. If the Company amends this Commitment to add a defect,
lien, encumbrance, adverse claim, or other matter recorded in the Public Records prior to the Commitment Date, any
liability of the Company is limited by Commitment Condition 5. The Company shall not be liable for any other
amendment to this Commitment.

LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY5.

(a) The Company's liability under Commitment Condition 4 is limited to the Proposed Insured's actual expense
incurred in the interval between the Company's delivery to the Proposed Insured of the Commitment and the
delivery of the amended Commitment, resulting from the Proposed Insured's good faith reliance to:
(i) comply with the Schedule B, Part I - Requirements;
(ii) eliminate, with the Company's written consent, any Schedule B, Part II - Exceptions; or
(iii) acquire the Title or create the Mortgage covered by this Commitment.

(b) The Company shall not be liable under Commitment Condition 5(a) if the Proposed Insured requested the
amendment or had Knowledge of the matter and did not notify the Company about it in writing.

(c) The Company will only have liability under Commitment Condition 4 if the Proposed Insured would not have
incurred the expense had the Commitment included the added matter when the Commitment was first delivered
to the Proposed Insured.

(d) The Company's liability shall not exceed the lesser of the Proposed Insured's actual expense incurred in good
faith and described in Commitment Conditions 5(a)(i) through 5(a)(iii) or the Proposed Policy Amount.

(e) The Company shall not be liable for the content of the Transaction Identification Data, if any.
(f) In no event shall the Company be obligated to issue the Policy referred to in this Commitment unless all of the

Schedule B, Part I - Requirements have been met to the satisfaction of the Company.
(g) In any event, the Company's liability is limited by the terms and provisions of the Policy.

This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Old Republic National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment
is not valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I - Requirements; Schedule
B, Part II - Exceptions and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. Generated 3/23/2018 11:40 AM



LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY MUST BE BASED ON THIS COMMITMENT6.

(a) Only a Proposed Insured identified in Schedule A, and no other person, may make a claim under this
Commitment.

(b) Any claim must be based in contract and must be restricted solely to the terms and provisions of this
Commitment.

(c) Until the Policy is issued, this Commitment, as last revised, is the exclusive and entire agreement between the
parties with respect to the subject matter of this Commitment and supersedes all prior commitment negotiations,
representations, and proposals of any kind, whether written or oral, express or implied, relating to the subject
matter of this Commitment.

(d) The deletion or modification of any Schedule B, Part II - Exception does not constitute an agreement or
obligation to provide coverage beyond the terms and provisions of this Commitment or the Policy.

(e) Any amendment or endorsement to this Commitment must be in writing and authenticated by a person
authorized by the Company.

(f) When the Policy is issued, all liability and obligation under this Commitment will end and the Company's only
liability will be under the Policy.

IF THIS COMMITMENT HAS BEEN ISSUED BY AN ISSUING AGENT7.

The issuing agent is the Company's agent only for the limited purpose of issuing title insurance commitments and
policies. The issuing agent is not the Company's agent for the purpose of providing closing or settlement services.

PRO-FORMA POLICY8.

The Company may provide, at the request of a Proposed Insured, a pro-forma policy illustrating the coverage that the
Company may provide. A pro-forma policy neither reflects the status of Title at the time that the pro-forma policy is
delivered to a Proposed Insured, nor is it a commitment to insure.

ARBITRATION9.

The Policy contains an arbitration clause. All arbitrable matters when the Proposed Policy Amount is $2,000,000 or
less shall be arbitrated at the option of either the Company or the Proposed Insured as the exclusive remedy of the
parties. A Proposed Insured may review a copy of the arbitration rules at http://www.alta.org/arbitration.

This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Old Republic National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment
is not valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I - Requirements; Schedule
B, Part II - Exceptions and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. Generated 3/23/2018 11:40 AM

http://www.alta.org/arbitration


rev. 07/2016

FACTS WHAT DOES OLD REPUBLIC TITLE
DO WITH YOUR PERSONAL INFORMATION?

Why?

Financial companies choose how they share your personal information. Federal law gives
consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing. Federal law also requires us to tell
you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Please read this notice
carefully to understand what we do.

What?

The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or
service you have with us. This information can include:

When you are no longer our customer, we continue to share your information as
described in this notice.

How?

All financial companies need to share customers' personal information to run their
everyday business. In the section below, we list the reasons financial companies can
share their customers' personal information; the reasons Old Republic Title chooses to
share; and whether you can limit this sharing.

Reasons we can share your personal information
Does Old Republic
Title share?

Can you limit
this sharing?

For our everyday business purposes — such as to
process your transactions, maintain your account(s), or
respond to court orders and legal investigations, or report to
credit bureaus

Yes No

For our marketing purposes —
to offer our products and services to you

No We don’t share

For joint marketing with other financial companies No We don’t share

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes —
information about your transactions and experiences

Yes No

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes —
information about your creditworthiness

No We don’t share

For our affiliates to market to you No We don’t share

For non-affiliates to market to you No We don’t share

Questions Go to www.oldrepublictitle.com (Contact Us)

 Checking account information and wire transfer instructions

 Social Security number and employment information
 Mortgage rates and payments and account balances

http://www.oldrepublictitle.com


Page 2

Who we are

Who is providing this notice? Companies with an Old Republic Title name and other affiliates.  Please
see below for a list of affiliates.

What we do

How does Old Republic
Title protect my personal
information?

To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we
use security measures that comply with federal law. These measures include
computer safeguards and secured files and buildings. For more information,
visit http://www.OldRepublicTitle.com/newnational/Contact/privacy.

How does Old Republic
Title collect my personal
information?

We collect your personal information, for example, when you:

We  also  collect  your  personal  information  from  others,  such  as  credit
bureaus, affiliates, or other companies.

Why can’t I limit all
sharing?

Federal law gives you the right to limit only:

State laws and individual companies may give you additional rights to limit
sharing. See the "Other important information" section below for your rights
under state law.

Definitions

Affiliates Companies related by common ownership or control. They can be financial
and nonfinancial companies.

Non-affiliates Companies not related by common ownership or control. They can be financial
and non-financial companies.

Joint marketing A formal agreement between non-affiliated financial companies that together
market financial products or services to you.

Sharing for non-affiliates to market to you

 Show your government-issued ID or provide your mortgage information
 Make a wire transfer

 Our affiliates include companies with an Old Republic Title name, and
financial companies such as Attorneys’ Title Fund Services, LLC, Lex
Terrae National Title Services, Inc., Mississippi Valley Title Services
Company, and The Title Company of North Carolina.

 Give us your contact information or show your driver’s license

 Old Republic Title does not share with non-affiliates so they can market to
you

 Sharing for affiliates’ everyday business purposes - information about
your creditworthiness

 •Old Republic Title doesn’t jointly market.

 Affiliates from using your information to market to you




Page 3

Other Important Information

Oregon residents only: We are providing you this notice under state law. We may share your personal information
(described on page one) obtained from you or others with non-affiliate service providers with whom we contract,
such as notaries and delivery services, in order to process your transactions. You may see what personal
information we have collected about you in connection with your transaction (other than personal information
related to a claim or legal proceeding). To see your information, please click on "Contact Us" at
www.oldrepublictitle.com and submit your written request to the Legal Department. You may see and copy the
information at our office or ask us to mail you a copy for a reasonable fee. If you think any information is wrong,
you may submit a written request online to correct or delete it. We will let you know what actions we take. If you do
not agree with our actions, you may send us a statement.

Affiliates Who May be Delivering This Notice

American First
Abstract, LLC

American First Title &
Trust Company

American Guaranty
Title Insurance
Company

Attorneys' Title Fund
Services, LLC

Compass Abstract,
Inc.

eRecording Partners
Network, LLC

Genesis Abstract, LLC Kansas City
Management Group,
LLC

L.T. Service Corp. Lenders Inspection
Company

Lex Terrae National
Title Services, Inc.

Lex Terrae, Ltd. Mara Escrow Company Mississippi Valley
Title Services
Company

National Title Agent's
Services Company

Old Republic Branch
Information Services,
Inc.

Old Republic
Diversified Services,
Inc.

Old Republic
Exchange Company

Old Republic
National Title
Insurance Company

Old Republic Title
and Escrow of
Hawaii, Ltd.

Old Republic Title Co. Old Republic Title
Company of Conroe

Old Republic Title
Company of Indiana

Old Republic Title
Company of Nevada

Old Republic Title
Company of
Oklahoma

Old Republic Title
Company of Oregon

Old Republic Title
Company of St. Louis

Old Republic Title
Company of
Tennessee

Old Republic Title
Information
Concepts

Old Republic Title
Insurance Agency,
Inc.

Old Republic Title, Ltd. Republic Abstract &
Settlement , LLC

Sentry Abstract
Company

The Title Company
of North Carolina

Title Services, LLC

Trident Land Transfer
Company, LLC



DEVON TITLE AGENCY
720 Capital Ave SW

Battle Creek, MI  49015
Phone:  (269) 964-7324
Fax:  (269) 964-7424
www.devontitle.com

PRIVACY POLICY

Property: 114 West Ash Street File No:  718403

Devon Title Agency respects the privacy of our customers’ personal information.  This Notice explains the ways in which
we may collect and use personal information obtained during the normal course of business.  The Devon Title Agency
Privacy Policy applies to all of its customers, former customers and applicants.

The Information We Collect:
The types of information we may collect from you, your lender, attorney, real estate broker, public records or other sources
include, but not limited to:

your contact information (name, address, telephone numbers, email address, etc.)§

information about your transaction such as the address of the subject property, the purchase price, existing§
liens, easements, and other title information obtained from the public record

your social security number§

driver license or other government issued identification§

information from third parties such as surveys, real estate tax information, escrow account balances, payoff§
amounts, etc.

The Way We Use and Disclose This Information:
We use the information obtained to provide you with the services, products and insurance that you, your lender, attorney,
or real estate brokers have requested.  We disclose information as needed to our affiliates or nonaffiliated third parties to
carry out and service your real estate transaction, to protect against fraud and unauthorized transactions, to provide
information to government or law enforcement agencies and as otherwise permitted by law.

Our Commitment To Data Security
We maintain physical, electronic, and procedural safeguards to guard your nonpublic personal information.  We reinforce
our privacy policy with our employees and those we contract with to provide you with the products and services requested.

If you have any questions about our privacy policy notice, please feel free to contact our corporate office at 248-273-4300
and ask for the legal department.

DT Privacy Policy (Rev 9/2017)

www.devontitle.com












Page 1 of 1Statewide Search for Subdivision Plats - Image

3/22/2018http://w1.lara.state.mi.us/platmaps/dt_image.asp?BCC_SUBINDEX=9032



 

 

CITY OF ALBION ORDINANCE 2018-05 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ARTICLE V OF CHAPTER 22, SECTION 22-205, OF 

THE ALBION CODE OF ORDINANCES, MEDICAL MARIHUANA FACILITIES 

LICENSE APPLICATIONS EVALUATION 

 
 
FINDINGS AND PURPOSE: The Albion City Council recently approved the City’s medical 
marihuana facility ordinance via Ordinance 2018-01. Initially the City Council approved 
only 4 of the 5 medical marihuana facilities authorized by the state. Subsequent thereto, 
the City Council authorized provisioning centers be added to the list of authorized medical 
marihuana that may operate with the City of Albion. The amendment allows for the 
addition of said provisioning centers. 
 

THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF ALBION, MICHIGAN, IS HEREBY 
AMENDED BY AMENDING ARTICLE V TO CHAPTER 22, Sections 22-203 through 22-
205, Section 22-207, and Section 22-212, and by adding Section 22-202, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

22-203. LICENSE ALLOCATION AND ANNUAL FEES.  

 

(A) No Person shall operate a Grower Facility, Processor Facility, Secure 
Transporter, Provisioning Center, or Safety Compliance Facility in the City of 
Albion without first obtaining a license to do so from the City Clerk and the 
State of Michigan. Subject to any other condition contained in this Ordinance, 
the City Clerk, after approval from the City Council, may issue up to an 
aggregate total of twenty (20) marihuana facility licenses. Said licenses may 
be issued to any of the following types of medical marihuana facilities: 

 
a. Grower Facilities:    
b. Processor Facilities:     
c. Provisioning Centers; 
d. Secure Transporters:    
e. Safety Compliance Facilities   

The term of each license shall be one (1) year. Not more than two (2) of the 
licenses described above may be issued to provisioning centers 

(B) The non-refundable application fee for a Medical Marihuana Facility license 
shall be established by the City Council by resolution. 

 
22-204. LICENSE APPLICATIONS SUBMISSION.  

 
(A) Application for each Medical Marihuana Facility license required by this 
Chapter shall be made in writing to the City Clerk and must be approved by the 
City Council after receiving a recommendation submitted by the Planning 
Commission, and approved by the State of Michigan, prior to commencing 



 

 

operation. Upon the expiration of an existing license, a licensee shall be required 
to reapply.   
 
(B) An application for a Medical Marihuana Facility license required by this Chapter 
shall contain the following:  

 
1. The appropriate non-refundable application fee in the amount per 22-
203(B);  
 
2. If the applicant is an individual, the applicant’s name, date of birth, 
physical address, copy of government issued photo identification, email 
address, and one or more phone numbers, including emergency contact 
information; 
 
3. If the applicant is not an individual, the names, dates of birth, physical 
addresses, copy of government issued photo identification, email 
addresses, and one or more phone numbers of each 
Stakeholder/shareholder/member of the applicant, including designation of 
the highest ranking Stakeholder/shareholder/member as an emergency 
contact person and contact information for the emergency contact person, 
articles of incorporation, assumed name registration documents, Internal 
Revenue Service SS-4 EIN confirmation letter, and a copy of the operating 
agreement of the applicant, if a limited liability company, a copy of the 
partnership agreement, if a partnership, or a copy of the by-laws or 
shareholder agreement, if a corporation or;  
 
4. The name and address of the proposed Medical Marihuana Facility and 
any additional contact information deemed necessary by the City Clerk;  
 
5. For the applicant, for each Stakeholder of the applicant, an affirmation 
under oath as to whether they are at least eighteen (18) years of age and 
have never been indicted for, charged with, arrested for, or convicted of, 
pled guilty or nolo contendere to, forfeited bail concerning, or had expunged 
any criminal offense under the laws of any jurisdiction, either felony or 
controlled substance related misdemeanor not including traffic violations, 
regardless of whether the offense has been expunged, pardoned, reversed 
on appeal or otherwise, including the date, name and location of the court, 
arresting agency, and prosecuting agency, the case caption, the docket 
number, the offense, the disposition, and the location and length of 
incarceration;  
 
6. Before hiring a prospective agent or employee of the applicant, and after, 
the holder of a license shall conduct a background check of the prospective 
employee. If the background check indicated a pending charge or conviction 
within the past ten (10) years for a controlled substance related felony, the 



 

 

applicant shall not hire the prospective employee or agent without written 
permission from the City Clerk;  
 
7. A signed release authorizing the Albion Department of Public Safety to 
perform a criminal background check to ascertain whether the applicant, 
each Stakeholder of the applicant, each managerial employee and 
employee of the applicant meet the criteria set forth in this Ordinance;  
 
8. The name, date of birth, physical address, copy of photo identification, 
and email address for any managerial employee or employee of the Medical 
Marihuana Facility, if other than applicant;  
 
9. An affirmation under oath as to whether the applicant has ever applied 
for or has been granted any commercial license or certificate issued by a 
licensing authority in Michigan or any other jurisdiction that has been 
denied, restricted, suspended, revoked, or not renewed and a statement 
describing the facts and circumstances concerning the application, denial, 
restriction, suspension, revocation, or nonrenewal, including the licensing 
authority, the date each action was taken, and the reason for each action;  
 
10.One of the following: (a) proof of ownership of the entire premises 
wherein the Medical Marihuana Facility is to be operated; or (b) written 
consent from the property owner for use of the premises in a manner 
requiring licensure under this Chapter along with a copy of the lease for the 
premises;  
 
11. Proof of an adequate premise liability and casualty insurance policy in 
the amount not exceeding the requirements addressed in the Medical 
Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act or applicable state laws, covering the 
Medical Marihuana Facility and naming the City of Albion as an additional 
insured party, available for the payment of any damages arising out of an 
act or omission of the applicant or its stakeholders, agents, employees or 
subcontractors;  
 
12. A description of the security plan for the Medical Marihuana Facility, 
including, but not limited to, any lighting, alarms, barriers, 
recording/monitoring devices and/or security guard arrangements proposed 
for the facility and premises. The security plan must contain the specification 
details of each piece of security equipment;  
 
13. A floor plan of the Medical Marihuana Facility, as well as a scale diagram 
illustrating the property upon which the Medical Marihuana Facility is to be 
operated, including all available parking spaces, and specifying which 
parking spaces, if any, are handicapped accessible;  
 



 

 

14. An affidavit that neither the applicant nor any Stakeholder of the 
applicant is in default to the City. Specifically, that the applicant or 
Stakeholder of the applicant has not failed to pay any property taxes, special 
assessments, fines, fee or other financial obligations to the City;  
 
15. An affidavit that the transfer of Marihuana to and from Medical 
Marihuana Facilities shall be in compliance with the MMMA and the Medical 
Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act or other applicable state laws:  
 
16. A staffing plan;  
 
17. Any proposed text or graphical materials to be shown on the exterior of 
the proposed Medical Marihuana Facility;  
 
18. A patient education plan;  
 
19. A business plan;  
 
20. A location area map of the Medical Marihuana Facility and surrounding 
area that identifies the relative locations and the distances (closest property 
line to the subject Medical Marihuana Facility’s building) to the subject 
Medical Marihuana Facility to the closest real property comprising a public 
or private elementary, vocational or secondary school; and church or 
religious institution if recognized as a tax-exempt entity as determined by 
the City Assessor or County Assessor’s office;  
 
21. A facility sanitation plan to protect against any Marihuana being ingested 
by any person or animal, indicating how the waste will be stored and 
disposed of, and how any Marihuana will be rendered unusable upon 
disposal. Disposal by on-site burning or introduction in the sewerage system 
is prohibited;  
 
22. Verification, with copies of actual bank statements, showing that the 
applicant has liquid funds in the applicant’s name in the amount needed to 
complete the Medical Marihuana Facility, but in no event less than 
$250,000.00, in immediate liquid, available funds;  
 
23. As it relates to a Grower Facility, the following additional items shall be 
requested:  

 
i. A Grower Plan that includes at a minimum a description of the 
Grower methods to be used, including plans for the growing 
mediums, treatments and/or additives;  
 
ii. A production testing plan that includes at a minimum a description 
of how and when samples for laboratory testing by a state approved 



 

 

Safety Compliance Facility will be selected, what type of testing will 
be required, and how the test results will be used;  
 
iii. An affidavit that all operations will be conducted in conformance 
with the MMMA, the Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act or 
other applicable state laws and such operations shall not be 
cultivated on the premises at any one time more than the permitted 
number of Marihuana Plants per the Michigan Medical Marihuana 
Act, as amended, and the Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing 
Act;  
 
iv. A chemical and pesticide storage plan that states the names of 
pesticides to be used in Growers and where and how pesticides and 
chemicals will be stored in the facility, along with a plan for the 
disposal of unused pesticides;  
 
v. All Growers must be performed within an Enclosed Locked Facility 
which may include indoors or in an enclosed greenhouse.  

 
(C) Upon receipt of a completed Medical Marihuana Facility application meeting 
the requirements of this Chapter and confirmation that the number of existing 
licenses does not exceed the maximum number established by resolution pursuant 
to Section 22-203(A), the City Clerk shall refer a copy of the application to each of 
the following for their review and approval: the City Attorney or his designee, the 
Chief of the Albion Public Safety Department or their designee, the Director of 
Planning and Development, and the City Finance Director or their designee. Once 
applications are verified by each department to be sufficiently complete and 
comprehensive, and no sooner, the City Clerk shall forward the applications to the 
Planning Commission for recommendation to the City Council.  
 
(D) No application shall be approved unless:  
 

1. The Public Safety Department or designee and the Office of Planning 
and Development or designee, have inspected the plans of the proposed 
location for compliance with all laws for which they are charged with 
enforcement;  
 
2. The applicant, each Stakeholder of the applicant, and the managerial 
employees and employees of the applicant, have passed a criminal 
background check conducted by the Albion Department of Public Safety;  
 
3. The Director of Planning and Development, has confirmed that the 
proposed location complies with the Zoning Ordinance;  
 
4. The Finance Director or their designee has confirmed that the applicant 
and each Stakeholder of the applicant are not in default to the City; 



 

 

 
5. The City Attorney or his designee has completed a detailed review of the 
Medical Marihuana Facility application for compliance with the applicable 
state laws and City Ordinances.  

 
(E) If written approval is given by each individual or department identified in 
Subsection (a)-(e), the City Clerk shall submit the application to the Planning 
Commission for recommendation to the City Council for the issuing of a license to 
the applicant. All licenses issued are contingent upon the State of Michigan issuing 
a license for the operation under state law.  
 
(F) Licensees shall report any other change in the information required by 
Subsection (b) to the City Clerk within ten (10) days of the change. Fees shall be 
set by Council Resolution for any Stakeholder added after the original Application 
is filed.  

 
22-205. LICENSE APPLICATIONS EVALUATION.  

 
(A) The City Council and Planning Commission will assess all applications referred 
to it by the Planning Commission pursuant to Section 4 and 5.  
 
(B) In its application deliberations, the City Council shall assess each application 
in each of the following categories:  
 

1. The applicant’s experience in operating other similarly licensed 
businesses.  
 
2. The applicant’s general business management experience.  
 
3. The applicant’s general business reputation.  
 
4. The integrity, moral character, and reputation; personal and business 
probity; financial ability and experience; and responsibility or means to 
operate or maintain a Medical Marihuana Facility of the applicant.  
 
5. The financial ability of the applicant to purchase and maintain adequate 
liability and casualty insurance.  
 
6. The sources and total amount of the applicant’s capitalization to operate 
and maintain the proposed Medical Marihuana Facility.  
 
7. Whether the applicant has been indicted for, charged with, arrested for, 
or convicted of, pled guilty or nolo contendere to, forfeited bail concerning, 
or had expunged any relevant criminal offense under the laws of any 
jurisdiction, either felony or misdemeanor, not including traffic violation, 



 

 

regardless of whether the offense has been expunged, pardoned, or 
revered as appealed or otherwise.  
 
8. Past convictions of the applicant involving any of the following, but not 
limited to:  

i. gambling;  
ii. prostitution;  
iii. weapons;  
iv. violence;  
v. tax evasion;  
vi. fraudulent activity; and  
vii. serious moral turpitude.  
viii. Felony Drug Convictions  

 
9. A felony or misdemeanor of such a nature that it may impair the ability of 
the applicant to operate a licensed business in a safe and competent 
manner;  
 
10. Whether the applicant has filed, or had filed against it, a proceeding for 
bankruptcy within the past seven (7) years;  
 
11.Whether the applicant has been served with a complaint or other notice 
filed with any public body regarding payment of any tax required under 
federal, state or local law that has been delinquent for one (1) or more years;  
 
12.Whether the applicant has a history of noncompliance with any 
regulatory requirements in this State or any other jurisdiction;  
 
13.As it relates to operation of a Provisioning Center, the applicant’s type of 
service and product that will be offered and the overall theme and 
atmosphere of the proposed Provisioning Center.  

 
(C) The City Council shall assess each application with aforementioned categories 
Section 22-205(B)(1) through (13) and issue a license to the applicant most 
qualified and meets the most categories in this section.  
 

(1) On and after March 20, 2018 (June 7, 2018 for Provisioning Centers), 
the City shall accept applications for authorization to operate a medical 
marihuana facility within the City. Application shall be made on a City form 
and must be submitted to the City Clerk “Clerk”). Once the Clerk receives a 
complete application including the initial annual medical marihuana facility 
fee, the application shall be time and date stamped. Complete applications 
shall be considered for authorization in consecutive time and date stamped 
order. Upon consideration, if the facility type authorization is available within 
the number specified above, then the applicant shall receive conditional 
authorization to operate such medical marihuana facility within the City. 



 

 

Once the limit on the number of an authorized facility is conditionally 
reached, then any additional complete applications shall be held in 
consecutive time and date stamped order for future conditional 
authorization. Any applicant waiting for future conditional authorization may 
withdraw their submission by written notice to the Clerk at any time.  
 
(2) Within thirty days from conditional authorization from the City or from, 
the conditionally authorized applicant must submit proof to the Clerk that 
the applicant has applied for prequalification from the state for a state 
operating license or has submitted full application for such license. If the 
applicant fails to submit such proof, then such conditional authorization shall 
be canceled by the Clerk and the conditional authorization shall be available 
to the next applicant in consecutive time and date stamped order as 
provided for in 22-203(1) herein.  
 
(3) If a conditionally authorized applicant is denied prequalification for a 
state operating license or is denied on full application for a state operating 
license, then such conditional authorization will be canceled by the Clerk 
and the conditional authorization shall be available to the next applicant in 
consecutive time and date stamped order as provided for in 22-203(1) 
herein.  
 
(4) A conditionally authorized applicant shall receive full authorization from 
the City to operate the medical marihuana facility within the City upon the 
applicant providing to the Clerk proof that the applicant has received a state 
operating license for the medical marihuana facility in the City and the 
applicant has met all other requirements of this ordinance for operation 
including but not limited to any zoning approval for the location of the facility 
within the City.  
 
(5) If a conditionally authorized applicant fails to obtain full authorization 
from the City within one year from the date of conditional authorization, then 
such conditional authorization shall be canceled by the Clerk and the 
conditional authorization shall be available to the next applicant in 
consecutive time and date stamped order as provided for in 22-203(1) 
herein. The City Council shall have authority to extend the deadline to obtain 
full authorization for up to an additional six months on written request of the 
applicant, within thirty days prior to cancellation, upon the reasonable 
discretion of the City Council finding good cause for the extension. 

 
22-207. MINIMUM OPERATING STANDARDS FOR PROVISIONING CENTERS 

 
The following minimum standards for a Provisioning Center shall apply.  
 

(A) No Provisioning Center shall be open between the hours of 8:00 p.m. and 9:00 
a.m.  



 

 

 
(B) Consumption of Marihuana shall be prohibited on the premises of a Provisioning 

Center and a sign shall be posted on the premises of each Provisioning Center 
indicating that consumption is prohibited on the premises.  

 
(C) Provisioning Centers shall continuously monitor the entire premises on which 

they are operated with surveillance systems that include security cameras. The 
video recordings shall be maintained in a secure, off-site location for a period of 
fourteen (14) days.  

 
(D) Unless permitted by the MMMA and Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act 

or applicable state law, public or common areas of the Provisioning Center must 
be separated from restricted or non-public areas of the provisioning center by a 
permanent barrier.  Unless permitted by the MMMA and Medical Marihuana 
Facilities Licensing Act or applicable state law, no Marihuana is permitted to be 
stored, displayed or transferred in an area accessible to the general public.  

 
(E) All Marihuana storage areas within Provisioning Centers must be separated from 

any customer/patient areas by a permanent barrier.  Unless permitted by the 
MMMA and Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act or applicable state law, 
no Marihuana is permitted to be stored in an area accessible by the general 
public or registered customers/patients.  Marihuana may be displayed in a sales 
area only if permitted by the MMMA or the Medical Marihuana Facilities 
Licensing Act.  

 
(F) Any usable Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Provisioning Center while 

the Provisioning Center is not in operation shall be secured in a safe permanently 
affixed to the premises.  

 
(G) A drive-through window on the premises of a Provisioning Center shall not be 

permitted.  
 

(H) The Provisioning Center shall not allow the sale, consumption, or use of alcohol 
or tobacco products on the premises.  

 
(I) No Provisioning Center shall be operated in a manner creating noise, dust, 

vibration, glare, fumes or odors detectable to normal senses beyond the 
boundaries of the property on which the Provisioning Center is operated.  

 
(J) The license required by this Chapter shall be prominently displayed on the 

premises of a Provision Center.  
 

(K) Disposal of Marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that prevents its 
acquisition by any person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in 
nonconformance with state laws.  

 



 

 

(L) All Marihuana delivered to a patient shall be packaged and labeled as provided 
by state law.  

 
(M) All registered patients must present both their Michigan Medical Marihuana 

patient/caregiver identification card and a government issued photo identification 
prior to entering restricted/limited areas or non-public areas of the Provisioning 
Center, and if no restricted/limited area is required, then promptly upon entering 
the Provisioning Center.  

 
(N) The premises shall be open at all times to any Michigan Medical Marihuana 

Licensing Board investigators, agents, auditors, the State Police, or Albion 
Department of Public Safety Officers without a warrant and without notice to the 
holder of the license, to enter the premises, offices, facilities, or other places of 
business of a licensee, if evidence of compliance or noncompliance with the 
MMMA and Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act or applicable state laws is 
likely to be found and consistent with constitutional limitations for the following 
purposes:  

 
(1) To inspect and examine all premises of the Medical Marihuana Facility;  

 
(2) To inspect, examine and audit relevant records of the licensee and, if the 

holder of the license or any of the managerial employees or employees 
fails to cooperate with an investigation, impound, seize, assume physical 
control of, or summarily remove from the premises all books, ledgers, 
documents, writings, photocopies, correspondence, records and 
videotapes, including electronically stored records, money receptacles, or 
equipment in which the records are stored;  

 
(3) To inspect the person, and inspect or examine personal effects present in 

a Medical Marihuana Facility, of any holder of state operating license while 
that person is present in a Medical Marihuana Facility;  

 
(4) To investigate alleged violations of the MMMA and Medical Marihuana 

Facilities Licensing Act or applicable state laws.  
 

(O) It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with local laws or 
regulations or state law.  

 
(P) It shall be prohibited to use advertising material that is misleading, deceptive, or 

false, or that is designed to appeal to minors.  
 

(Q) It shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of a Marihuana leaf in any 
exterior building signage.  

 
(R) No provisioning center shall allow a physician to conduct a medical examination 

or issue a medical certification document on the premises for the purpose of 



 

 

obtaining a registry identification card, regardless of whether the Stakeholder 
was present at the time the prohibited conduct took place. 

 
(S) Certified laboratory testing results that meet the MMMA and Medical Marihuana 

Facilities Licensing Act or applicable state laws must be available to all 
Provisioning Center patients/customers upon request. 

 

22-212. LOCATION OF GROWER FACILITY, SAFETY COMPLIANCE FACILITY, 

PROCESSOR FACILITY, PROVISIONING CENTER, AND SECURE TRANSPORTER.  

 

(A) No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility, Provisioning 
Center or Secure Transporter shall be located within five hundred (500) feet of 
real property comprising a public or private elementary, licensed child care 
facility, vocational or secondary school. 
 

(B) No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility, Provisioning 
Center, or Secure Transporter shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) 
feet of real property comprising a public park. Any Grower Facility, Safety 
Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter located more 
than two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five hundred (500) feet of real 
property comprising a public park shall be surrounded by a fence as required 
by city ordinance. The fence requirement contained herein may be waived if 
the City deems a fence to be impractical with the location of the facility and if 
the facility has other adequate security measures to ensure the security of the 
premises and safety of the public. 

 

(C) No Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility, Provisioning 
Center, or Secure Transporter shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) 
feet of real property comprising a place of religious worship. Any Grower 
Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility or Secure Transporter 
located more than two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five hundred (500) 
feet of real property comprising a place of religious worship shall be surrounded 
by a fence as required by city ordinance. The fence requirement contained 
herein may be waived if the City deems a fence to be impractical with the 
location of the facility and if the facility has other adequate security measures 
to ensure the security of the premises and safety of the public. 

 

(D) No Provisioning Center shall be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of 
any residential zoning district of the City. Any Provisioning Center located more 
than two hundred fifty (250) feet but less than five hundred feet of any 
residential zoning district shall be surrounded by a fence as required by 
ordinance. The fence requirement contained herein may be waived if the City 
deems a fence to be impractical with the location of the facility and if the facility 
has other adequate security measures to ensure the security of the premises 
and safety of the public. 
 



 

 

All Grower Facilities shall be limited to the M-1-P, M-2, and M-2-P Zoning Districts. 
Safety Compliance Facilities shall be limited to the B-3, M-1-P, M-2, and M-2-P Zoning 
Districts. Secure Transporters shall be limited to the B-3, M-1-P, M-2, and M-2-P Zoning 
Districts. Processor Facilities and Provisioning Centers shall be limited to B-3, M-1-P, 
M-2, and M-2-P Zoning Districts. 
 

 

Renumbering: The following Ordinances shall be renumbered as follows: 

(A) 22-203 shall be 22-202; 

(B) 22-204 shall be 22-203; 

(C) 22-205 shall be 22-204; 

(D) 22-206 shall be 22-205; 

(E) 22-207 shall be 22-206; 

(F) 22-208 shall be 22-207; 

(G) 22-209 shall be 22-208; 

(H) 22-210 shall be 22-209; 

(I) 22-211 shall be 22-210; 

(J) 22-212 shall be 22-211; 

 

Repealer: All other ordinances in conflict or inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 

Severability: The provisions of this Ordinance are deemed to be severable and should 
any provision, section, or party thereof be declared to be invalid, the remainder of the 
ordinances shall continue in full force and effect. 

 
This Ordinance shall take effect after publication on June 7, 2018. 
 
First Reading:      Second Reading: 
April 16, 2018      May 7, 2018 
 
Ayes _____       Ayes  _____ 
Nays _____       Nays  _____ 
Absent_____       Absent_____ 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Jill Domingo      Garrett Brown, 
City Clerk      Mayor 
 
 



 

 

 



2018 Albion City Council Goals 

 

 

1. Neighborhood Stabilization 

2. Infrastructure- Streets/Sidewalks/Water/Sewer 

3. Quality Affordable Housing- Senior & General 

4. Governance-Would like to see this completed in the next 3-6 months before 

New City Manager starts.  MML Training for Boards & Commissions/Council 

Rules with Attorney Scott Smith. 

5. Implementing a Master Calendar 

6. Vision-What type of community are we planning for and utilizing resources 

to achieve these goals.  Should start with Neighborhood Planning Councils. 

7. New Water Tower 
 













 

 

702 704 706 708 710 

W. ERIE ST.  

S
. 
A

L
B

IO
N

 S
T

. 

Disclaimer: This map does not represent a survey 

or legal document and is provided on an "as is" 

basis. Calhoun County expresses no warranty for 

the information displayed on this map document. 

 



 

City of Albion 

City of Albion 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

lb
io

n
 

City of Albion 

City of Albion City of Albion 

City of Albion City of Albion 

City of Albion 

City of Albion 

City of Albion 

City of Albion 
City of Albion 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

lb
io

n
 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

lb
io

n
 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

lb
io

n
 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

lb
io

n
 

Acreage 0.45   

Acreage 2.05   Acreage 0.54   

P.N. 51-012-333-00 

P.N. 51-012-372-00 P.N. 51-012-380-00 

P
.N

. 5
1

-0
1

2
-3

7
1

-0
0

 

A
cr

ea
ge

 0
.3

0
   

Acreage 0.34   

P.N. 51-012-352-02 

P.N. 51-012-352-01 

Acreage 3.83 
Acreage 0.54  

P.N. 51-012-380-00 

P.N. 51-012-386-00 
Acreage 0.16   

P.N. 51-012-387-00 

Acreage 0.16  

P.N. 51-012-397-01 
  Approx. 

 Acreage 0.27  

Acreage 1.70 

P.N. 51-012-395-01 

P.N. 51-012-395-01 

P
.N

. 5
1

-0
1

2
-3

50
-0

0
 

A
cr

ea
ge

 0
.2

2
  

P
.N

. 5
1

-0
1

2
-3

47
-0

0
 

A
cr

ea
ge

 0
.2

5
 

P
.N

. 5
1

-0
1

2
-3

46
-0

0
 

A
cr

e
ag

e 
0

.2
0

 

P
.N

. 5
1

-0
1

2
-3

45
-0

0
 

A
cr

ea
ge

 0
.2

0
 

City of Albion  

P.N.51-012-333-02 

Acreage 0.10 

 

C.C.L.B.A. 

C.C.L.B.A. 

C.C.L.B.A. 

C.C.L.B.A. 

P.N. 51-004-829-00 

P.N. 51-004-828-00 

P.N. 51-004-826-00 

P.N. 51-012-344-00 
Acreage 0.40 

Acreage 0.18 

Acreage 0.18 

Acreage 0.35 

City of Albion City of Albion City of Albion 
A.B.A. 

C.C.L.B.A. – Calhoun County Land Bank Authority  

A.B.A. – Albion Building Authority  



















REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 1/2Page
:

04/12/2018 11:56 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2017

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGET

END BALANCE
12/31/2016

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 208 - RECREATION FUND
Revenues
Dept 780 - RECREATION

105.99 (6,750.24)119,500.24 112,750.00 119,906.48 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES208-780-402.00
34.73 (1,305.49)(694.51)(2,000.00)(2,781.94)PROPERTY TAX CHARGEBACKS208-780-402.01
99.99 0.04 403.96 404.00 488.08 DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROP TAXES208-780-410.00
99.99 0.42 3,681.58 3,682.00 1,232.91 PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES208-780-424.00
100.00 (14,788.87)14,788.87 0.00 0.00 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE TAX208-780-441.00
129.18 (211.59)936.59 725.00 1,243.22 PENALTY & INTEREST ON TAXES208-780-445.00

0.00 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 11,767.25 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION STATE REIM208-780-573.00
378.05 (5,700.00)7,750.00 2,050.00 6,393.36 LOCAL GRANTS208-780-590.00
117.46 (2,305.36)15,505.36 13,200.00 19,067.14 RECREATION FEES208-780-608.00
142.63 (134.30)449.30 315.00 287.95 INTEREST208-780-665.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.16 RENTS208-780-667.00
100.00 0.00 225.00 225.00 1,400.00 CONTRIBUTIONS-PRIVATE INDIVIDU208-780-675.00
135.45 (129.38)494.38 365.00 0.00 CONTRIB - INDIVID - VAN208-780-675.01
409.88 (5,500.34)7,275.34 1,775.00 1,411.20 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS208-780-676.00

120.80 (29,325.11)170,316.11 140,991.00 160,445.81 Total Dept 780 - RECREATION

Dept 781 - POSITIVE YOUTH DEVELOPMENT
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 LOCAL GRANTS208-781-590.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 Total Dept 781 - POSITIVE YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

Dept 782 - JUNIOR OPTMISTS - JOOI
100.00 (700.00)700.00 0.00 300.00 LOCAL GRANTS208-782-590.00
100.00 0.00 50.00 50.00 0.00 CONTRIBUTIONS-PRIVATE INDIVIDU208-782-675.00

1,500.00 (700.00)750.00 50.00 300.00 Total Dept 782 - JUNIOR OPTMISTS - JOOI

121.29 (30,025.11)171,066.11 141,041.00 170,745.81 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 780 - RECREATION

90.66 7,614.63 73,885.37 81,500.00 80,423.66 PART TIME WAGES208-780-703.00
90.79 108.64 1,071.36 1,180.00 1,166.14 MEDICARE208-780-714.00
92.54 369.13 4,580.87 4,950.00 4,986.28 FICA208-780-715.00
92.64 123.35 1,551.65 1,675.00 0.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION208-780-720.00
58.36 20.82 29.18 50.00 22.34 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE208-780-721.00
65.72 137.13 262.87 400.00 105.99 OFFICE SUPPLY208-780-726.00
15.00 68.00 12.00 80.00 57.00 DUES, BOOKS, PERIODICAL208-780-728.00
0.00 750.00 0.00 750.00 675.32 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES208-780-776.00

62.06 474.31 775.69 1,250.00 705.94 GASOLINE208-780-778.00
52.84 212.20 237.80 450.00 190.00 VEHICLE & EQUIP MAINT SUPPLIES208-780-780.00
62.50 1,500.00 2,500.00 4,000.00 4,400.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES208-780-802.00
100.00 0.00 7,485.00 7,485.00 7,266.00 ADMINISTRATION FEES208-780-840.00
107.94 (134.95)1,834.95 1,700.00 1,833.93 TELEPHONE208-780-851.00

0.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 542.68 TRAVEL208-780-857.00
73.12 2,285.11 6,214.89 8,500.00 8,899.07 PROGRAM EXPENSES208-780-882.00
100.00 0.00 8,700.00 8,700.00 8,700.00 SENIOR CENTER208-780-882.01

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 448.00 TRAINING208-780-885.00
16.00 1,050.00 200.00 1,250.00 415.00 ENTRANCE FEES208-780-906.00
100.48 (9.25)1,934.25 1,925.00 1,549.09 ELECTRICITY208-780-922.00
100.00 (0.04)9,500.04 9,500.00 9,500.04 EQUIPMENT RENTAL208-780-943.00



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 2/2Page
:

04/12/2018 11:56 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2017

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGET

END BALANCE
12/31/2016

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 208 - RECREATION FUND
Expenditures

99.67 5.52 1,644.48 1,650.00 1,647.78 INSURANCE AND BONDS208-780-950.00
42.80 143.00 107.00 250.00 266.24 MISCELLANEOUS208-780-955.00

89.11 14,967.60 122,527.40 137,495.00 133,800.50 Total Dept 780 - RECREATION

Dept 781 - POSITIVE YOUTH DEVELOPMENT
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,580.00 PROGRAM EXPENSES208-781-882.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,580.00 Total Dept 781 - POSITIVE YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

Dept 782 - JUNIOR OPTMISTS - JOOI
84.87 75.66 424.34 500.00 215.00 PROGRAM EXPENSES208-782-882.00

84.87 75.66 424.34 500.00 215.00 Total Dept 782 - JUNIOR OPTMISTS - JOOI

89.10 15,043.26 122,951.74 137,995.00 144,595.50 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

1,579.59 (45,068.37)48,114.37 3,046.00 26,150.31 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

89.10 15,043.26 122,951.74 137,995.00 144,595.50 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
121.29 (30,025.11)171,066.11 141,041.00 170,745.81 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 208 - RECREATION FUND:



Budgeted

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Taxable Value 102,531,791 96,136,827 91,579,586 84,095,072 83,563,386 86,337,117

Millage Rate 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5

Tax Rev Before Captures 153,798 144,205 137,369 126,143 125,345 129,506

Tax Rev After Captures 141,879 129,309 125,697 119,906 119,500 111,750 *

Chargebacks From County (2,336) (17,776) (4,614) (2,782) (695) (1,000)

Net Property Tax Revenue 139,543 111,533 121,083 117,124 118,805 110,750

Other Revenue 63,257 28,662 29,150 43,320 51,510 49,915

Total Recreation Dept Rev 202,800 140,195 150,233 160,444 170,315 160,665

* - The actual tax revenues should be closer to $120,000.  The budget was calculated based on a continual decline in TV when it

       actually increased slightly.

City of Albion Recreation Department
5 Year Revenue Summary Plus 2018 Budgeted





2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Taxable Value 102,531,791 96,136,827 91,579,586 84,095,072 83,563,386 86,337,117

0

20,000,000

40,000,000

60,000,000

80,000,000

100,000,000

120,000,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Taxable Value Decline



Budgeted

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Taxable Value 102,531,791 96,136,827 91,579,586 84,095,072 83,563,386 86,337,117

Millage Rate 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5

Tax Rev Before Captures 153,798 144,205 137,369 126,143 125,345 129,506

Tax Rev After Captures 141,879 129,309 125,697 119,906 119,500 111,750 *

Chargebacks From County (2,336) (17,776) (4,614) (2,782) (695) (1,000)

Net Property Tax Revenue 139,543 111,533 121,083 117,124 118,805 110,750

Other Revenue 63,257 28,662 29,150 43,320 51,510 49,915

Total Recreation Dept Rev 202,800 140,195 150,233 160,444 170,315 160,665

* - The actual tax revenues should be closer to $120,000.  The budget was calculated based on a continual decline in TV when it

       actually increased slightly.

City of Albion Recreation Department
5 Year Revenue Summary Plus 2018 Budgeted





2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Taxable Value 102,531,791 96,136,827 91,579,586 84,095,072 83,563,386 86,337,117

0

20,000,000

40,000,000

60,000,000

80,000,000

100,000,000

120,000,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Taxable Value Decline



INFORMATION 

ONLY 
 



FUND: 101 202 203 208 226 250 265 275 277 450 452 590 591 661
CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

CASH SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT FOR CITY OF ALBION 1/2Page: 04/12/2018 11:48 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

FROM 02/01/2018 TO 02/28/2018

Ending
Balance

02/28/2018
Total 

Credits 
Total 

Debits 

Beginning
Balance

02/01/2018Description
Fund
Account

Fund 101 GENERAL FUND
(125,685.83)303,100.12 109,227.81 68,186.48 CASH001.00
472,501.79 11,100.05 38,553.38 445,048.46 CASH - INCOME TAX ACCOUNT002.00
149,873.50 0.00 0.00 149,873.50 CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT003.00

100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 PETTY CASH004.00
400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 PETTY CASH - CHANGE DRAWER004.02

5,450.00 0.00 0.00 5,450.00 HRA ACCOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES005.00
17,513.34 0.00 5.37 17,507.97 CASH PARK FENCE007.00

307,629.83 0.00 369.66 307,260.17 INVESTMENTS017.00

827,782.63 314,200.17 148,156.22 993,826.58 GENERAL FUND

Fund 202 MAJOR STREETS FUND
288,567.44 65,080.25 30,203.49 323,444.20 CASH001.00
100,508.51 0.00 120.77 100,387.74 INVESTMENTS017.00

389,075.95 65,080.25 30,324.26 423,831.94 MAJOR STREETS FUND

Fund 203 LOCAL STREETS FUND
143,202.63 23,801.20 0.00 167,003.83 CASH001.00

Fund 208 RECREATION FUND
89,689.56 9,766.20 5,200.85 94,254.91 CASH001.00

Fund 226 SOLID WASTE FUND
188,280.56 2,998.47 9,022.03 182,257.00 CASH001.00
52,619.08 0.00 63.22 52,555.86 INVESTMENTS017.00

240,899.64 2,998.47 9,085.25 234,812.86 SOLID WASTE FUND

Fund 250 CDBG FUND
33,255.87 0.00 14.03 33,241.84 CDBG FUND CASH001.01

Fund 265 DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
5,307.61 5,422.91 0.00 10,730.52 CASH001.00

Fund 275 ALBION BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND
116,958.99 2,525.25 3,485.44 115,998.80 FUND CASH ACCOUNT001.01

276.76 0.00 0.00 276.76 PETTY CASH004.00

117,235.75 2,525.25 3,485.44 116,275.56 ALBION BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND

Fund 277 ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE
198,265.43 30,394.56 37,024.35 191,635.64 FUND CASH ACCOUNT001.01
423,352.58 0.00 5,892.88 417,459.70 CASH - CAPITAL PROJECTS RESERV002.00
25,459.99 10.82 548.82 24,921.99 CASH-SECURITY DEPOSIT008.00

647,078.00 30,405.38 43,466.05 634,017.33 ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE

Fund 450 STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND
27,592.55 0.00 9,022.03 18,570.52 CASH001.00

251,271.35 0.00 301.94 250,969.41 INVESTMENTS017.00

278,863.90 0.00 9,323.97 269,539.93 STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Fund 452 MDOT RECONSTRUCTION FUND
141,435.84 0.00 0.00 141,435.84 CASH001.00

Fund 590 SEWER FUND
59,857.05 76,967.53 98,046.14 38,778.44 CASH001.00

306,289.44 0.00 368.04 305,921.40 INVESTMENTS017.00

366,146.49 76,967.53 98,414.18 344,699.84 SEWER FUND

Fund 591 WATER FUND
212,595.83 83,453.31 76,091.22 219,957.92 CASH001.00
549,273.50 0.00 0.00 549,273.50 CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT003.00



FUND: 101 202 203 208 226 250 265 275 277 450 452 590 591 661
CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

CASH SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT FOR CITY OF ALBION 2/2Page: 04/12/2018 11:48 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

FROM 02/01/2018 TO 02/28/2018

Ending
Balance

02/28/2018
Total 

Credits 
Total 

Debits 

Beginning
Balance

02/01/2018Description
Fund
Account

61,990.00 0.00 0.00 61,990.00 RESTRICTED CASH - BOND RESERVE006.00
356,700.73 0.00 428.62 356,272.11 INVESTMENTS017.00

1,180,560.06 83,453.31 76,519.84 1,187,493.53 WATER FUND

Fund 661 EQUIPMENT POOL FUND
204,790.41 27,646.18 32,226.28 200,210.31 CASH001.00

4,665,324.34 642,266.85 456,216.37 4,851,374.82 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 1/12Page: 04/12/2018 11:45 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2018
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.16

% BDGT
USED

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
02/28/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
3.32 3,577,865.00 118,618.36 3,476,040.12 3,478,812.00   000 - GENERAL

100.00 0.00 65.00 5.00 5.00   209 - ASSESSING
27.20 100.00 27.20 36.60 37.00   215 - CLERK
22.00 500.00 110.00 2,360.50 350.00   260 - FINANCE DEPT AND/OR ABA GENERAL
9.67 80,000.00 7,736.34 69,312.74 60,000.00   276 - CEMETERY
6.91 81,773.00 5,646.50 59,735.82 52,527.80   345 - PUBLIC SAFETY
7.75 96,300.00 7,462.27 95,873.72 93,308.00   422 - CODE ENFORCEMENT

100.00 0.00 1,202.21 222,611.87 401,200.00   758 - ALBION RIVER/BIKE TRAIL
14.18 2,750.00 390.00 2,625.00 2,625.00   775 - PARKS
17.82 25,000.00 4,454.16 80,826.89 84,531.00   778 - HOLLAND PARK TRANSFORMATION PROJECT
0.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00   930 - TRANSFER IN

3.76 3,874,288.00 145,712.04 4,019,428.26 4,183,395.80   TOTAL REVENUES

5.77 45,255.00 2,609.39 37,474.62 41,460.00   101 - CITY COUNCIL
9.44 141,268.00 13,340.64 108,068.92 113,791.00   172 - CITY MANAGER

15.26 50,050.00 7,639.48 46,834.14 51,050.00   209 - ASSESSING
15.69 95,375.00 14,965.85 92,982.41 93,025.00   210 - ATTORNEY
6.39 132,175.00 8,450.62 87,872.84 90,030.00   215 - CLERK

15.73 24,925.00 3,919.65 24,309.99 24,330.00   226 - HUMAN RESOURCES
9.30 369,465.00 34,349.59 292,686.68 318,180.00   260 - FINANCE DEPT AND/OR ABA GENERAL

14.62 71,450.00 10,447.10 84,542.68 96,445.00   265 - MUNICIPAL BLDG AND/OR 201 N CLINTON ST
6.32 164,494.00 10,391.11 159,187.40 174,520.00   276 - CEMETERY

11.78 2,122,100.00 249,943.98 2,039,567.91 2,045,862.78   345 - PUBLIC SAFETY
9.06 207,409.00 18,791.84 163,040.56 175,847.00   422 - CODE ENFORCEMENT

14.56 60,423.00 8,796.42 191,590.79 197,821.00   442 - CITY MAINTENANCE
1.82 15,615.00 284.75 14,920.14 18,202.00   444 - TREE TRIMMING
5.83 9,653.00 562.40 10,738.67 10,886.00   447 - ENGINEERING
8.87 142,500.00 12,643.07 0.00 0.00   448 - STREET LIGHTING
0.00 8,800.00 0.00 8,284.51 8,600.00   526 - EPA LANDFILL
0.00 0.00 0.00 222,611.87 401,200.00   758 - ALBION RIVER/BIKE TRAIL
7.76 213,758.00 16,580.22 211,484.85 212,222.00   775 - PARKS
0.00 17,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   776 - RIEGER PARK POND PROJECT
0.00 25,000.00 0.00 80,826.89 84,531.00   778 - HOLLAND PARK TRANSFORMATION PROJECT

30.80 129,650.00 39,931.68 172,862.25 190,200.00   895 - GENERAL APPROPRIATION

11.21 4,046,365.00 453,647.79 4,049,888.12 4,348,202.78   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

178.95 (172,077.00)(307,935.75)(30,459.86)(164,806.98)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

11.21 4,046,365.00 453,647.79 4,049,888.12 4,348,202.78 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
3.76 3,874,288.00 145,712.04 4,019,428.26 4,183,395.80 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 2/12Page: 04/12/2018 11:45 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2018
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.16

% BDGT
USED

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
02/28/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREETS FUND
0.04 700,170.00 247.28 674,684.21 640,612.00   000 - GENERAL
0.00 40,000.00 0.00 64,254.41 37,000.00   487 - M-99 TRUNKLINE

0.03 740,170.00 247.28 738,938.62 677,612.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 17,500.00 0.00 0.00 23,800.00   454 - ACT 51 NON-MOTORIZED
11.44 393,636.00 45,023.35 363,333.97 363,512.00   461 - MAINTENANCE
0.55 5,183.00 28.29 3,164.56 4,403.00   465 - TRAFFIC SERVICES

59.12 29,115.00 17,212.11 22,937.07 29,415.00   467 - WINTER MAINTENANCE
75.35 22,703.00 17,106.19 20,970.04 19,292.00   486 - I-94 TRUNKLINE
55.84 22,692.00 12,671.37 18,562.92 20,467.00   487 - M-99 TRUNKLINE
49.15 14,120.00 6,939.42 11,449.61 12,402.00   488 - M-199 TRUNKLINE
0.00 193,000.00 0.00 203,000.00 203,000.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

14.18 697,949.00 98,980.73 643,418.17 676,291.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

233.85 42,221.00 (98,733.45)95,520.45 1,321.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

14.18 697,949.00 98,980.73 643,418.17 676,291.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.03 740,170.00 247.28 738,938.62 677,612.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREETS FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 3/12Page: 04/12/2018 11:45 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2018
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.16

% BDGT
USED

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
02/28/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREETS FUND
0.00 232,262.00 0.00 228,196.53 207,170.00   000 - GENERAL
0.00 190,000.00 0.00 200,000.00 200,000.00   930 - TRANSFER IN

0.00 422,262.00 0.00 428,196.53 407,170.00   TOTAL REVENUES

7.23 365,956.00 26,444.68 334,203.99 353,201.00   461 - MAINTENANCE
1.35 7,377.00 99.65 6,082.32 7,620.00   465 - TRAFFIC SERVICES

46.85 30,315.00 14,202.06 20,998.70 28,225.00   467 - WINTER MAINTENANCE
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

10.02 406,648.00 40,746.39 364,285.01 392,046.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

260.96 15,614.00 (40,746.39)63,911.52 15,124.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

10.02 406,648.00 40,746.39 364,285.01 392,046.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 422,262.00 0.00 428,196.53 407,170.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREETS FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 4/12Page: 04/12/2018 11:45 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2018
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.16

% BDGT
USED

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
02/28/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 208 - RECREATION FUND
2.00 160,665.00 3,213.04 170,316.11 140,991.00   780 - RECREATION
0.00 0.00 0.00 750.00 50.00   782 - JUNIOR OPTMISTS - JOOI

2.00 160,665.00 3,213.04 171,066.11 141,041.00   TOTAL REVENUES

10.07 160,387.00 16,156.80 122,527.40 137,495.00   780 - RECREATION
0.00 0.00 0.00 424.34 500.00   782 - JUNIOR OPTMISTS - JOOI

10.07 160,387.00 16,156.80 122,951.74 137,995.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

4,656.03 278.00 (12,943.76)48,114.37 3,046.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

10.07 160,387.00 16,156.80 122,951.74 137,995.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
2.00 160,665.00 3,213.04 171,066.11 141,041.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 208 - RECREATION FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 5/12Page: 04/12/2018 11:45 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2018
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.16

% BDGT
USED

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
02/28/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 226 - SOLID WASTE FUND
(0.38)221,400.00 (844.29)273,492.78 237,000.00   000 - GENERAL

(0.38)221,400.00 (844.29)273,492.78 237,000.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 19,935.00 0.00 13,888.82 35,440.00   523 - LEAF PICKUP
0.86 21,107.00 181.71 6,465.78 21,817.00   524 - TREE DUMP
8.15 143,816.00 11,724.23 89,358.02 116,515.00   528 - SOLID WASTE
0.00 25,500.00 0.00 25,500.00 25,500.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

5.66 210,358.00 11,905.94 135,212.62 199,272.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

115.47 11,042.00 (12,750.23)138,280.16 37,728.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

5.66 210,358.00 11,905.94 135,212.62 199,272.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.38 221,400.00 (844.29)273,492.78 237,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 226 - SOLID WASTE FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 6/12Page: 04/12/2018 11:45 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2018
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.16

% BDGT
USED

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
02/28/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 265 - DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
2.18 22,950.00 500.00 27,771.94 27,349.96   000 - GENERAL
0.00 25,000.00 0.00 29,244.11 25,000.00   400 - FED DRUG LAW ENFOR - REIMBUR

1.04 47,950.00 500.00 57,016.05 52,349.96   TOTAL REVENUES

18.53 32,250.00 5,975.74 76,014.05 73,475.23   333 - DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT
3.39 22,500.00 763.17 20,684.14 18,796.20   400 - FED DRUG LAW ENFOR - REIMBUR

12.31 54,750.00 6,738.91 96,698.19 92,271.43   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

91.75 (6,800.00)(6,238.91)(39,682.14)(39,921.47)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

12.31 54,750.00 6,738.91 96,698.19 92,271.43 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
1.04 47,950.00 500.00 57,016.05 52,349.96 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 265 - DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 7/12Page: 04/12/2018 11:45 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2018
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.16

% BDGT
USED

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
02/28/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 275 - ALBION BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND
2.65 4,293.00 113.89 4,567.62 4,432.00   000 - GENERAL

100.00 0.00 1,813.34 27,991.94 26,992.00   264 - EDC BUILDING
16.67 1,512.00 252.00 1,512.00 1,512.00   265 - MUNICIPAL BLDG AND/OR 201 N CLINTON ST
7.50 32,000.00 2,400.00 19,578.00 30,000.00   271 - FIRE/AMBULANCE BUILDING
0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00   273

12.11 37,805.00 4,579.23 53,650.56 62,936.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 6,940.00 0.00 6,170.54 9,365.00   260 - FINANCE DEPT AND/OR ABA GENERAL
19.06 5,900.00 1,124.53 19,124.11 22,275.00   264 - EDC BUILDING
0.00 1,290.00 0.00 2,000.06 2,130.00   265 - MUNICIPAL BLDG AND/OR 201 N CLINTON ST
7.14 25,600.00 1,828.26 15,710.68 25,000.00   271 - FIRE/AMBULANCE BUILDING

36.78 1,900.00 698.80 1,614.93 1,813.00   273 - 112 E ERIE ST

8.77 41,630.00 3,651.59 44,620.32 60,583.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

24.25 (3,825.00)927.64 9,030.24 2,353.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

8.77 41,630.00 3,651.59 44,620.32 60,583.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
12.11 37,805.00 4,579.23 53,650.56 62,936.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 275 - ALBION BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 8/12Page: 04/12/2018 11:45 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2018
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.16

% BDGT
USED

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
02/28/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 277 - ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE
18.32 443,000.00 81,142.75 459,533.20 442,516.00   000 - GENERAL

18.32 443,000.00 81,142.75 459,533.20 442,516.00   TOTAL REVENUES

8.91 347,250.00 30,941.00 329,423.84 376,525.00   701 - ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE
0.00 64,750.00 0.00 62,487.50 62,488.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE - BONDS

7.51 412,000.00 30,941.00 391,911.34 439,013.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

161.94 31,000.00 50,201.75 67,621.86 3,503.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

7.51 412,000.00 30,941.00 391,911.34 439,013.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
18.32 443,000.00 81,142.75 459,533.20 442,516.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 277 - ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 9/12Page: 04/12/2018 11:45 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2018
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.16

% BDGT
USED

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
02/28/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 367 - SIDEWALK PROGRAM FUND
64.61 (3,500.00)(2,261.20)149,967.02 133,904.00   000 - GENERAL

64.61 (3,500.00)(2,261.20)149,967.02 133,904.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 200,000.00 0.00 19,971.19 5,500.00   443 - SIDEWALK PROGRAM

0.00 200,000.00 0.00 19,971.19 5,500.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

1.11 (203,500.00)(2,261.20)129,995.83 128,404.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 200,000.00 0.00 19,971.19 5,500.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
64.61 (3,500.00)(2,261.20)149,967.02 133,904.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 367 - SIDEWALK PROGRAM FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 10/12Page: 04/12/2018 11:45 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2018
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.16

% BDGT
USED

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
02/28/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
15.52 1,140,800.00 177,033.55 1,212,197.24 1,135,186.00   000 - GENERAL
0.00 0.00 0.00 637,256.22 635,494.00   544 - SAW GRANT PROJECT
0.00 0.00 0.00 852,897.33 950,000.00   546 - MEDC GRANT - DIGESTER, PUMP, ETC.

15.52 1,140,800.00 177,033.55 2,702,350.79 2,720,680.00   TOTAL REVENUES

8.17 1,319,962.00 107,849.87 1,200,370.43 1,341,789.00   536 - SEWER UTILITY OPERATIONS
8.66 7,800.00 675.22 7,983.48 7,500.00   542 - WWTP ENERGY IMPROVEMENTS
0.00 0.00 0.00 616,739.22 635,494.00   544 - SAW GRANT PROJECT
0.00 0.00 0.00 193,991.92 950,000.00   546 - MEDC GRANT - DIGESTER, PUMP, ETC.
0.00 148,400.00 0.00 148,400.00 148,400.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

7.35 1,476,162.00 108,525.09 2,167,485.05 3,083,183.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

20.43 (335,362.00)68,508.46 534,865.74 (362,503.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

7.35 1,476,162.00 108,525.09 2,167,485.05 3,083,183.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
15.52 1,140,800.00 177,033.55 2,702,350.79 2,720,680.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 11/12Page: 04/12/2018 11:45 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2018
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.16

% BDGT
USED

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
02/28/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
17.02 918,250.00 156,248.66 959,872.66 917,170.00   000 - GENERAL

17.02 918,250.00 156,248.66 959,872.66 917,170.00   TOTAL REVENUES

10.14 998,520.00 101,271.80 944,799.30 971,968.00   536 - WATER UTILITY OPERATIONS
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00   540 - WELLHEAD PROTECTION
0.00 0.00 0.00 7,360.42 0.00   548 - WATERTOWER PAINTING PROJECT
0.00 0.00 0.00 3,224.00 3,974.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE-BONDS
0.00 11,450.00 0.00 11,450.00 111,450.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

10.02 1,010,470.00 101,271.80 966,833.72 1,087,892.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

59.61 (92,220.00)54,976.86 (6,961.06)(170,722.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

10.02 1,010,470.00 101,271.80 966,833.72 1,087,892.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
17.02 918,250.00 156,248.66 959,872.66 917,170.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 12/12Page: 04/12/2018 11:45 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2018
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.16

% BDGT
USED

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
02/28/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 661 - EQUIPMENT POOL FUND
18.97 268,575.00 50,958.28 296,886.52 296,202.00   000 - GENERAL

18.97 268,575.00 50,958.28 296,886.52 296,202.00   TOTAL REVENUES

12.90 294,828.00 38,029.52 262,968.89 295,053.00   770 - EQUIPMENT POOL
0.00 100.00 0.00 220.25 220.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE - BONDS
0.00 17,850.00 0.00 17,850.00 17,850.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

12.16 312,778.00 38,029.52 281,039.14 313,123.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

29.25 (44,203.00)12,928.76 15,847.38 (16,921.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

12.16 312,778.00 38,029.52 281,039.14 313,123.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
18.97 268,575.00 50,958.28 296,886.52 296,202.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 661 - EQUIPMENT POOL FUND:

38.80 (757,832.00)(294,066.22)1,026,084.49 (563,395.45)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

10.08 9,029,497.00 910,595.56 9,284,314.61 10,835,372.21 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
7.45 8,271,665.00 616,529.34 10,310,399.10 10,271,976.76 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS


	1                                        04162018 Agenda.pdf (p.1-2)
	2                                   CM Report MDOT Superior Street.pdf (p.3)
	3                                      CM Report  116324_ 2018 Detours.pdf (p.4)
	4                                           CM Report 16324_2018 Construction Schedule.pdf (p.5)
	5                                                   Notice of Public Hearing Before Albion City Council on 04-16-18.pdf (p.6-8)
	6                                                Ordinance # 2018-04 Amend. Chapter 30 Zoning Ordinance - Medical Marihuana Facilities 04-05-2018 (002).pdf (p.9-12)
	7                                            3-19-18 Council Minutes.pdf (p.13-18)
	8                                                      4-2-18 Council Minutes.pdf (p.19-24)
	9                                                     4-9-18 Study Session Minutes.pdf (p.25-28)
	10                                                      Assembly Permit The Big Read.pdf (p.29-33)
	11                                                 white cane days.pdf (p.34)
	12                                          Cruise-In letter.pdf (p.35)
	13                                          Resolution 2018-12.pdf (p.36)
	14                                                Union Steel.pdf (p.37)
	15                                         Sale 114 W. Cass St Merged Commitment.pdf (p.38-55)
	vest 718403.pdf (p.1)
	og deed 718403.pdf (p.2-3)
	chain4 718403.pdf (p.4)
	chain5 718403.pdf (p.5)
	albionpdf.pdf (p.6)

	16                                            Ordinance 2018-05.pdf (p.56-68)
	17                                               2018 Albion City Council Goals.pdf (p.69)
	18                                       sale of property-Sims letter.pdf (p.70)
	19                                         sale of property.pdf (p.71-74)
	20                                 Map-ERIE ST. W. 702 704 706  708 (sale of property).pdf (p.75)
	21                                          Map-Urben Renewal 02142018 (sale of property).pdf (p.76)
	22                                    Sale of Property 2016-25.pdf (p.77-84)
	23            Rec 12-31-2017 Recreation Budget.pdf (p.85-86)
	24      Copy of Recreation Property Tax Summary.pdf (p.87-89)
	25                                     Copy of Recreation Property Tax Summary1.pdf (p.90-92)
	26                                           NFORMATION ONLY.pdf (p.93)
	27                                      2-28-2018 Cash Summary.pdf (p.94-95)
	28                                                     2-28-2018 Rev  Exp.pdf (p.96-107)

